
 

1 
 

Committee Administrator: Sarah Lees 
Tel: 01884 234310 

Email: slees@middevon.gov.uk 
This document is available on the Council's Website at: www.middevon.gov.uk 

Mid Devon District Council 
 

Homes Policy Development Group 
 

Tuesday, 14 March 2017 at 2.15 pm 
Exe Room, Phoenix House, Tiverton 

 
Next ordinary meeting 

Tuesday, 23 May 2017 at 2.15 pm 
 
 

Those attending are advised that this meeting will be recorded 
 

Membership 
 
Cllr Mrs E M Andrews  
Cllr Mrs H Bainbridge  
Cllr D R Coren  
Cllr W J Daw  
Cllr Mrs G Doe  
Cllr R J Dolley  
Cllr P J Heal  
Cllr F W Letch  
Cllr J D Squire  
 

A G E N D A 
 
Members are reminded of the need to make declarations of interest prior to any 
discussion which may take place 
 
1   Apologies and Substitute Members   

 
To receive any apologies for absence and notice of appointment of 
substitutes. 
 

2   Public Question Time   
 
To receive any questions relating to items on the Agenda from members 
of the public and replies thereto. 
 

3   Minutes  (Pages 5 - 12) 
 
To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 17 
January 2017 (copy attached). 
 

4   Chairman's Announcements   
 
To receive any announcements that the Chairman may wish to make. 

Public Document Pack

http://www.middevon.gov.uk/


 

2 
 

Committee Administrator: Sarah Lees 
Tel: 01884 234310 

Email: slees@middevon.gov.uk 
This document is available on the Council's Website at: www.middevon.gov.uk 

 
5   Vulnerability Policy  (Pages 13 - 24) 

 
To receive a report from the Housing Services Manager outlining the 
rationale for a new policy for the Housing Service relating to identifying 
and supporting vulnerable tenants and to seek the adoption of this. 
 

6   Telecare Policy  (Pages 25 - 34) 
 
To receive a report from the Housing Service Manager outlining the 
rationale for a new policy for the Housing Service relating to the lifeline 
alarm service they offer and to seek adoption of this. 
 

7   Private Sector Housing Fees and Charges  (Pages 35 - 40) 
 
To receive a report from the Public Health & Professional Services 
Manager providing Members with the revised fees and charges for 
statutory and discretionary functions within the Private Sector Housing 
team. 
 

8   Financial Monitoring - for the 9 months to December 2016  (Pages 
41 - 56) 
 
To receive a report from the Director of Finance, Assets & Resources 
presenting a financial update in respect of the income and expenditure 
so far in the year. 
 

9   Performance and Risk Q3  (Pages 57 - 68) 
 
To receive a report from the Director of Corporate Affairs and Business 
Transformation providing Members with an update on performance 
against the Corporate Plan and local service targets for 2016/17 as well 
as providing an update on the key business risks. 
 
Please note: If Members have questions regarding this report 
please submit them to the clerk in advance of the meeting so that 
the appropriate officer can be asked to attend or provide a written 
response.  
 

10   Rechargeable Service   
 
To receive a presentation on how the Rechargeable Service works. 
 

11   Houses in multiple occupation  (Pages 69 - 72) 
 
To receive a briefing paper from the Lead Officer for Private Sector 
Housing on the Mandatory Licensing of Houses in Multiple Occupation 
(HMO). This will provide an update on the current position and give 
details on the expected legislative changes that are due in Spring 2017 
and the potential impact this will have on the service. 

http://www.middevon.gov.uk/


 

3 
 

Committee Administrator: Sarah Lees 
Tel: 01884 234310 

Email: slees@middevon.gov.uk 
This document is available on the Council's Website at: www.middevon.gov.uk 

 
12   Homelessness Reduction Bill - briefing paper  (Pages 73 - 76) 

 
To receive a briefing paper on the Homelessness Reduction Bill 
currently going through Parliament. 
 

13   Chairman Annual Report 2016/17  (Pages 77 - 80) 
 
To receive the annual report from the Chairman of the Policy 
Development Group for 2016 / 17. 
 

14   Identification of items for the next meeting   
 
Members are asked to note that the following items are already 
identified in the work programme for the next meeting: 

 
 
Note: This item is limited to 10 minutes. There should be no discussion 
on the items raised. 
 

 
 

Stephen Walford 
Chief Executive 

Monday, 6 March 2017 
 

 
 
Anyone wishing to film part or all of the proceedings may do so unless the press 
and public are excluded for that part of the meeting or there is good reason not 
to do so, as directed by the Chairman. Any filming must be done as 
unobtrusively as possible from a single fixed position without the use of any 
additional lighting; focusing only on those actively participating in the meeting 
and having regard also to the wishes of any member of the public present who 
may not wish to be filmed. As a matter of courtesy, anyone wishing to film 
proceedings is asked to advise the Chairman or the Member Services Officer in 
attendance so that all those present may be made aware that is happening.  
 
Members of the public may also use other forms of social media to report on 
proceedings at this meeting. 
 
Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting and listen to 
discussion. Lift access to the Council Chamber on the first floor of the building is 
available from the main ground floor entrance. Toilet facilities, with wheelchair 
access, are also available. There is time set aside at the beginning of the 
meeting to allow the public to ask questions. 
 
An induction loop operates to enhance sound for anyone wearing a hearing aid 
or using a transmitter. If you require any further information, or if you would like 

http://www.middevon.gov.uk/


 

4 
 

Committee Administrator: Sarah Lees 
Tel: 01884 234310 

Email: slees@middevon.gov.uk 
This document is available on the Council's Website at: www.middevon.gov.uk 

a copy of the Agenda in another format (for example in large print) please 
contact Sarah Lees on: 
 
Tel: 01884 234310  
E-Mail: slees@middevon.gov.uk 
 

http://www.middevon.gov.uk/


 

Homes Policy Development Group – 17 January 2017 24 

MID DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
MINUTES of a MEETING of the HOMES POLICY DEVELOPMENT GROUP held on 
17 January 2017 at 2.15 pm 
 
Present   
Councillors Mrs E M Andrews, Mrs H Bainbridge, 

D R Coren, W J Daw, Mrs G Doe, 
R J Dolley, P J Heal and F W Letch 
 

Apologies  
Councillor 
 

J D Squire 
 

Also Present  
Councillors C J Eginton and R L Stanley 

 
Also Present  
Officers  Nick Sanderson (Head of Housing and Property Services), 

Claire Fry (Housing Services Manager), Simon Newcombe 
(Public Health and Professional Services Manager), 
Michael Parker (Housing Options Manager), Roderick 
Hewson (Principal Accountant), Tanya Wenham (Lead 
Officer Public Sector Housing), Nicky Chandler (Auditor) 
and Sarah Lees (Member Services Officer) 
 

 
54 APOLOGIES AND SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS  

 
Apologies were received from Councillor J D Squire. 
 

55 PUBLIC QUESTION TIME  
 
Referring to item 6 on the agenda, Syrian Vulnerable Persons Scheme, Hazel 
Underwood stated that Devon County Council as a whole had agreed to take 74 
families, why then had Mid Devon District Council discussed only taking 5? 
 
Richard Bunning stated that he was a local farmer from Washfield and when he had 
first moved there he had been asked by an elderly gentleman whether he could walk 
around his farm. When Mr Bunning asked him why, the gentleman stated that he had 
been evacuated there during the war and had proceeded to tell him stories about 
how the women of Washfield had pulled together to operate a search light system to 
detect German war planes. He could remember very well the community spirit of the 
Washfield people and how they had pulled together to help those who were 
vulnerable and who needed assistance during times of trouble. Mr Bunning stated 
that there were many people in Washfield wanting to help refugee families and he 
asked what Mid Devon District Council was prepared to do to show similar 
humanitarian spirit? 
 
The Chairman read out a statement from Honorary Alderman D J Nation who been 
unable to attend the meeting in person. This read as follows: 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



 

Homes Policy Development Group – 17 January 2017 25 

“Over the last year or two I have attended meetings of local people held to discuss 
the level of support our local community might provide to Syrians seeking refuge here 
from the terror they have experienced in their homeland. It has been clear that a 
significant number of us are willing and able to help these unfortunate folk settle 
locally so that they may enjoy a peaceful life and begin to contribute, as we are 
confident that they will, to our community. 
 
I understand that the cost of the exercise will be reimbursed by central government. 
In the event there is a shortfall, I appreciate that this may have repercussions for 
other budgets. Whilst this would be regrettable, I think that we can all agree that the 
plight of these people is far worse than any other disadvantage being experienced by 
our native population, though I would hope that other vital social needs could 
continue to be addressed adequately.”  
 
The Committee had also received an information sheet from a member of the public, 
shortly before the meeting, entitled ‘Washfield ready to welcome a Syrian Family’. 
 

56 MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 15 November 2016 were confirmed as a true and 
accurate record and SIGNED by the Chairman. 
 

57 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS (00:00:56)  
 
The Chairman had the following announcements to make: 
 

a) TPAS, the Tenants Participation Advisory Service, had recognised the 
meaningful work Mid Devon’s housing services teams had been doing with 
regard to tenant engagement and they had been nominated to receive a 
national award. The results would be known on 3 February 2017. 

 
b) He reminded those present of the importance of estate ‘walk about’s’ and the 

fact that housing officers valued being accompanied by Ward Members. Some 
Members did not attend any of these. He felt they needed to be reminded how 
important they were. 

 
58 MOTION 531 (COUNCILLOR T W SNOW - 17 NOVEMBER 2016) (00:02:50)  

 
The following Motion had been referred by the Council to the Homes Policy 
Development Group for its consideration. 
 
Motion 531 (Councillor T W Snow) 
 
 “That as MDDC owns the land at Station Yard that we investigate and develop this 
land for our own local Council housing needs. This would help the extreme housing 
needs of our local residents as the cost of any houses built would be reduced by 
having no land purchase cost involved. 
  
That our MP be kept informed in order to support this motion.” 
 
Cllr T W Snow had been invited to the meeting to speak to his Motion. He stated that 
the biggest cost of any housing development was the land. The Council could 

Page 6



 

Homes Policy Development Group – 17 January 2017 26 

potentially build here and house some of the Syrian families being discussed later in 
the agenda. The site was in a prime location being in the centre of town and in his 
opinion maintenance would cost next to nothing. He requested that the Council 
develop this land to help local people and to not just take profit into account. 
 
The Head of Housing and Property Services stated that officers were not currently 
considering this land as a potential site for development due to the fact that it was 
contaminated land and classed as B8, meaning that it was for general industrial 
storage only. He stated that the amount of infrastructure works needed would be 
considerable and would also be subject to a planning decision. There were other 
sites that were more advantageous. 
 
Discussed took place regarding: 
 

 Whether any initial outlay might be able to be recouped through rental income 
in the long term. Rental income would go to the Housing Revenue Account if 
developed by the HRA. 

 How difficult it would be to get a change of use from a brown field site to a 
housing development site and the potential costs involved in doing this. 

 
Following discussion thereon Cllr T W Snow AGREED to amend the wording of his 
Motion to state the following: 
 
“That as MDDC owns the land at Station Yard that we investigate and consider 
developing this land, taking all matters into consideration, for our own local Council 
housing needs. This would help the extreme housing needs of our local residents as 
the cost of any houses built would be reduced by having no land purchase cost 
involved. 
  
That our MP be kept informed in order to support this motion.” 
 
It was therefore RECOMMENDED to Council that the amended Motion, as agreed, 
be supported. 
 
(Proposed by Cllr F W Letch and seconded by Cllr D R Coren) 
 

59 SYRIAN VULNERABLE PERSONS SCHEME (00:29:30)  
 
The Group had before it a report * from the Head of Housing and Property Services 
providing an overview of the Syrian Vulnerable Persons’ Resettlement Scheme 
(SVPRS) and the possible implications for the Council. 
 
The following factors were brought to the attention of the Group: 
 

 The report needed to be corrected slightly to state that families would not have 
leave to remain in this country after resettlement but would have humanitarian 
visas which would be reviewed after 5 years.  

 There were now 4 not 5 years remaining for the resettlement programme in 
line with the current parliamentary term. 

 The Working Group had met with a representative from Devon County Council 
who had fully briefed them on what was happening throughout the county. The 

Page 7



 

Homes Policy Development Group – 17 January 2017 27 

recommendation within the officer report had been made directly by the 
members of the Working Group. 

 Other Devon local authorities who had initially signed up to the programme 
and who had originally put forward ambitious targets in terms of the numbers 
of families they had hoped to re-house were now having to revise those 
figures based upon experience relating to such issues as rural isolation, poor 
transport links, religion, language  and educational complexities. 

 The low number of private sector landlords coming forward with properties to 
let. 

 The Council could not afford to employ a dedicated officer for this resettlement 
programme, it would need to be fitted into the day to day business of the 
Housing Options team, this might have a detrimental effect upon 
homelessness work. 

 
Discussion took place regarding: 
 

 The disturbing news images from Syria compared to living in the rural Mid 
Devon countryside. 

 The lack of public transport in some rurally isolated villages together with 
potential language difficulties. However, it was recognised that some Syrian 
families may have previously lived within rural communities in their own 
country. 

 The fact that the Group needed to make a recommendation based upon the 
number of families the Council would support not on where they would be 
located. 

 The merits involved in taking one family initially and monitoring the situation 
before agreeing to take more. 

 The fact that it took approximately 3-4 months after initial agreement before 
families actually arrived. 

 
It was RECOMMENDED to the Cabinet that: 
 

i. Up to 5 refugee families are housed / supported, as and when properties 
come forward, for the duration of the scheme providing the costs are met by 
the Devon County Council led resettlement programme and that this be 
reviewed four months after the arrival of the first family (Note: the programme 
is currently of 4 years duration). 

 
ii. These refugee families be accommodated in Private Sector accommodation. 

However, further consideration must be given to the need for support (help) 
which would involve a minimum of weekly visits by one or more officers and 
also an exit strategy involving the landlord, the Council and DCC. 

 
(Proposed by Cllr W J Daw and seconded by Cllr D R Coren) 
 
Note: * Report previously circulated; copy attached to the signed minutes. 
 

60 FINANCIAL MONITORING (01:03:40)  
 
The Group had before it, and NOTED, a report * from the Director of Finance, Assets 
& Resources presenting a financial update in respect of the income and expenditure 
so far in the year. 

Page 8



 

Homes Policy Development Group – 17 January 2017 28 

 
Key highlights within the report included the following: 
 

 The forecast General Fund deficit for the current year was £52k with the main 
movements relating to Non Domestic Rates 2015/16 Devon pooling gain, 
Developmental Control staff vacancies and the Discretionary Housing 
payment funding being greater than budgeted. 

 

 There was a forecasted underspend in the Housing Revenue Account which 
could increase what could be spent on the housing maintenance fund as 
several projects were planned in the next few years. 

 
Discussion took place regarding: 
 

 ‘Tenant Charges for Services’ as listed in Appendix E related to the previous 
warden service including the learning disability warden service. 

 Alarm expenditure was showing a saving of £61k as the Council was not 
planning to purchase as many alarms as budgeted for since many of the 
current ones continued to be fit for purpose.   

 The need for boiler repairs at Tiverton Town Hall. 

 There was now only one vacant unit at Market Walk. 
 
Note: * Report previously circulated; copy attached to the signed minutes. 
 

61 FINAL 2017/18 HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT (HRA) BUDGET (01:14:05)  
 
The Group had before it, and NOTED, a report * from the Director of Finance, Assets 
& Resources considering the options available in order for the Council to set a 
balanced budget for 2017/18 and agree a future strategy for further budgetary 
planning for 2018/19 onwards. 
 
Key highlights within the report included the following: 
 

 The assumptions made within Appendix 1 of the report including all rents 
being decreased by 1%. 

 The proposal to increase community alarm charges by £0.30 per week per 
property and garage rents by £0.10 per week 

 
Discussion took place regarding: 
 

 Costs in relation to asbestos work which was unavoidable and a reasonable 
amount to be spending year on year. 

 Income of £230k in relation to solar panels. 
 
Note: * Report previously circulated; copy attached to the signed minutes. 
 

62 GENERAL FUND BUDGET 2017/18 - UPDATE (01:18:25)  
 
The Group had before it, and NOTED, a report * from the Director of Finance, Assets 
and Resources considering the options available in order for the Council to move 
towards a balanced budget for 2017/18. 
 

Page 9



 

Homes Policy Development Group – 17 January 2017 29 

Key highlights within the report included the following: 
 

 A number of assumptions had been made which were listed at the bottom of 
Appendix 1 including a Council Tax increase of £5 on a Band D property. 

 The budget gap had been £419k in November 2016 but following the receipt 
of the Formula Grant figure and a lot of work by Managers this had now 
reduced to £231k. 

 New Homes Bonus would be £110k less in 2017/18 than in 2016/17. 

 Income from the garden waste scheme had reduced by £50k based on the 
original assumption and similarly leisure income was not where it had been 
expected to be. 

 A Cabinet report was being prepared at the moment for its meeting on 2 
February and it was hoped that the budget gap would have been reduced 
further still. Any remaining gap would require Members to make a decision 
about where the shortfall came from. 

 
Note: * Report previously circulated; copy attached to the signed minutes. 
 

63 DECANT POLICY (01:24:11)  
 
The Group had before it a report from the Housing Services Manager presenting the 
revised Decanting Policy. She explained the importance of having a detailed policy 
as it avoided confusion and allowed everybody to know where they stood. The 
Council tried to ensure a co-ordinated approach and were pragmatic wherever 
possible. 
 
Discussion took place regarding: 
 

 The need for Tenants to seek their own contents insurance which was 
emphasised at Tenant Sign Up meetings. 

 The Decant Policy was averagely invoked between 3 to 4 times a year. 
 
It was RECOMMENDED to the Cabinet that the revised Decant Policy be approved. 
 
(Proposed by Cllr F W Letch and seconded by Cllr D R Coren) 
 
Note: * Report previously circulated; copy attached to the signed minutes. 
 

64 PERFORMANCE AND RISK (01:35:50)  
 
The Group had before it, and NOTED, a report * from the Director of Corporate 
Affairs and Business Transformation providing Members with an update on 
performance against the Corporate Plan and local service targets for 2016/17 as well 
as providing an update on the key business risks. 
 
Note: * Report previously circulated; copy attached to the signed minutes. 
 

65 UPDATE ON EMPTY HOMES (01:39:07)  
 
The Group had before it, and NOTED, a briefing paper * from the Lead Officer for 
Private Sector Housing. The Officer was new in post and was introduced to the 
Group by the Public Health and Professional Services Manager. The contents of the 

Page 10



 

Homes Policy Development Group – 17 January 2017 30 

report were summarised with an emphasis placed on how the work in this area 
related to the Corporate Plan. A lot of progress had been made in the last 6 months 
in terms of trying to identify those empty homes needing regeneration which were 
currently having an adverse effect on communities. 
 
Discussion took place regarding: 
 

 The dispersement of neglected empty properties across the district, they were 
not all concentrated in the larger towns. 

 The importance of Ward Member involvement since they were best placed to 
know their own ‘patch’. 

 A range of enforcement options which were within ‘the tool kit’. 
 
It was AGREED that a list of known empty properties be sent to Ward Members on a 
quarterly basis providing that personal data had been removed. 
 
Note: * Briefing paper previously circulated; copy attached to the signed minutes. 
 

66 BRIEFING ON HOME IMPROVEMENT LOANS (01:52:20)  
 
The Group had before it, and NOTED, a briefing paper * from the Lead Officer for 
Private Sector Housing. The contents of the report were summarised with the new 
pilot approach already proving to be a success. A final decision on the permanent 
approach going forwards would be made by the end of April and would be delegated 
to the Director of Corporate Affairs and Business Transformation and the Cabinet 
Member for Housing.  
 
It was suggested that details of the new scheme be forwarded to Town and Parish 
Councils on a regular basis. It was noted that a leaflet would be included in the 
Council Tax bills being sent out in the Spring (subject to the above final decision). 
 
The current interest rate was 4% although this was being reviewed. The length of 
time given to people to repay the loan was dependent on the individual’s personal 
circumstances. Efforts would be made to find the most affordable repayment 
mechanism for each individual. 
 
Note: * Briefing paper previously circulated; copy attached to the signed minutes. 
 

67 IDENTIFICATION OF ITEMS FOR THE NEXT MEETING  
 
In addition to the items already listed in the work programme the following was also 
requested to be on the agenda for the next meeting: 
 

 A presentation regarding how the rechargeable service works 

 Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMO)  

 Briefing paper on the Homelessness Reduction Bill currently going through 
Parliament. 

 
 
 
 
(The meeting ended at 4.46 pm) CHAIRMAN 

Page 11



 

Homes Policy Development Group – 17 January 2017 31 

 

Page 12



HOMES PDG        
14 MARCH 2017             

 
VULNERABILITY POLICY  
 
Cabinet Member  Cllr Ray Stanley  
Responsible Officer Claire Fry, Housing Services Manager 
 
Reason for Report:  To explain the rationale for a new policy for the Housing 
Service relating to identifying and supporting vulnerable tenants and to seek the 
adoption of this. 
 
RECOMMENDATION(S):  That Cabinet recommends the adoption of the Housing 
Service Vulnerability Policy. 
 
Relationship to Corporate Plan:  The Council must run the Housing Service 
efficiently and effectively in accordance with legislative requirements and the 
provisions of the regulatory framework. The Council must also consider the impact of 
an aging population and help people retain their independence and remain in their 
own home. 
 
Financial Implications:  Income from the lifeline alarm service and Handyperson 
Scheme are accounted for within the Housing Revenue Account and supports 
housing expenditure. 
 
Legal Implications:  Having a clearly defined policy ensures consistency of 
approach. 
 
Risk Assessment:   Failure to provide housing management staff with the 
appropriate policies could result in a less consistent and effective service. 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 The Council is committed to improving the Housing Service and generating 

additional income. The implementation of a new Vulnerability Policy will 
provide guidance on identifying and supporting vulnerable tenants to help 
them to sustain their tenancy and promote independence. 

 
1.2  Tenants Together approved the draft Vulnerability Policy at their meeting on  

2 March 2017. 
 
1.4 Cabinet is asked to consider the new policy and to agree the adoption of it. 
 
2.0 Overview of policy 
 
2.1 The policy provides a framework for staff which sets out the Council’s 

approach to identifying and supporting vulnerable tenants.  It highlights the 
different vulnerabilities that people face and explains some of the services 
available to support them. 
 

 
 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



MDDC Report: Housing Services Community Alarm Policy 
V1.0 

 
 
 2.2  The policy explains the different ways a person’s vulnerability can be brought 

to the attention of the Council.  For example, it may be highlighted through 
their Devon Home Choice application, service requests, local knowledge 
obtained or information supplied by external agencies, such as health, 
education or probation. 

 

2.3   The different factors that increases vulnerability are highlighted  in the policy,  
for example, a medical condition affecting mental or physical health, having a 
learning disability, language barriers where English is not a tenant’s first 
language or being a victim of domestic abuse.  
 

2.4   There are other risk factors associated with a person developing mental  
health difficulties and these have been explained in the policy.  This could be 
linked to biological factors caused by genetics or hormone imbalance, social 
factors such as poverty deprivation, unemployment or isolation and 
psychological factors which refer to the kind of person someone is and how 
they cope with life demands. 
 

2.5   It is recognised that vulnerability can be experienced for short periods of time  
or on a long term basis.  Officers of the Council, where available, will provide 
assistance to support the tenant in sustaining their tenancy or will make a 
referral to an external agency for advice and support.   
 

2.6  Examples of support provided by the Council includes: providing aids and  
adaptations to promote independent living, providing advice on housing 
matters and benefits, making referrals for debt and financial advice or liaising 
with other external agencies with specialist knowledge and services. 
 

2.7   It is important that when it is brought to the Council’s attention that someone  
has a vulnerability, that this is recorded. Therefore a clause has been 
introduced which states that information will be stored on the Council’s 
housing management system so it can be referred to when offices are 
carrying out housing functions. 

 
2.8   The policy promotes the additional services that the Council offers, to 

encourage tenancy sustainment and independence. These include the 
Handyperson Scheme including cooker connection, lifeline alarm service and 
providing aids and adaptations to the home.  At the same time, it generates 
additional income for the Council, for those services where a charge is 
applicable, for example, the Handyperson Scheme or lifeline alarm service.  
 

2.9   The Council understands that moving home can be stressful for some people,  
especially those with a vulnerability.  The policy promotes a service available 
for elderly and vulnerable tenants who have recently moved into a Council 
property.  They are entitled to up to 2 hours of an operative’s time, free of 
charge, to assist the tenant with minor improvements around the home, for 
example putting up curtain rails or putting together flat pack furniture.  The 
criteria for eligibility of this service is set out in the policy.  

 
 

Page 14



MDDC Report: Housing Services Community Alarm Policy 
V1.0 

 
2.10 The Council is committed to the principles of openness and transparency  

and for this reason, the policy includes a clause relating to this.  If, for any 
reason, there are any operational matters which impact upon the Council’s 
ability to operate this policy, they will ensure that information about this is 
given to residents and other stakeholders. 

 
Contact for more Information: Claire Fry, Housing Services Manager (01884 
234920 cfry@middevon.gov.uk) 
 
Circulation of the Report: Councillor Ray Stanley, Management Team 
 
List of Background Papers:  A copy of such papers to be made available for public 
inspection and included on Website 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Mid Devon District Council 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Vulnerability Policy 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy Number: HSG v1.1 
 
  
 
 
March 2017 
  

Page 17



Vulnerability Policy 

 

Vulnerability Policy v1.1 /6-Mar-17 Page 2 

 

 
Version Control Sheet 
 
Title: Vulnerability Policy 
 
Purpose: To implement a new Vulnerability Policy in accordance with good practice 
and relevant legislative requirements. 
 
 
Owner: Housing Services Manager 
cfry@middevon.gov.uk  
Telephone number 01884 234920 
 
Date:  March 2017 
 
Version Number: v1.1 
 
Status: New policy 
 
Review Frequency: Every 4 years or sooner if required and in accordance with 
good practice and changes in legislation 
 
Consultation This document was sent out for consultation to the following: 
Cabinet Member 
Staff 
Tenants Together 
Management Team 
Homes PDG 
 
 
Document History 
This document obtained the following approvals. 
 

Title  Date Version 
Approved  

Cabinet Member 22 February 2017  

Tenants Together 
 

  

Management Team 7 March 2017  

Homes PDG   

Cabinet   

 

 

Page 18



Vulnerability Policy 

 

Vulnerability Policy v1.1 /6-Mar-17 Page 3 

 

1.   Introduction 

This policy statement outlines Mid Devon District Council’s (MDDC), Housing 
Service’s approach to identifying and supporting vulnerable tenants to help 
them to sustain their tenancies and promote independence. 

2.   Scope 

This policy highlights the different vulnerabilities that people may face and 
explains some of the services available them.  This policy covers the following 
points and should be read in conjunction with the related documents as stated 
below:- 
 

 Factors contributing to vulnerability  

 Signs of potential vulnerability  

 Children and vulnerable adults 

 Support available 

 The Equality Duty  

 Additional services offered 

3.  Related Documents 
a. Tenancy Agreement 
b. Income Management Policy 
c. Anti-social behaviour Policy  
d. Domestic Abuse Policy 
e. Harassment Policy 
f. Community Alarm Policy 
g. Aids & Adaptations Policy 
h. Hoarding Policy 
i. Homelessness Strategy 
j. Allocations Policy 
k. Safeguarding Children and Vulnerable Adults Policy 
l. Council Tax Reduction Scheme, Exceptional Hardship Policy  

4. Definitions 

The following definition applies to this policy: 
 
Vulnerable means any individual who is, or may be, in need of help or  
support due to mental health difficulties, disability, age, illness or frailty and  
who are, or may be, unable to look after their home and/or their wellbeing or 
unable to protect themselves from harm or exploitation by others.  
 

5.  Factors contributing to vulnerability 
 
5.1  A person’s vulnerability or that of a member of their household may be 

brought to the Council’s attention through:- 

 A Devon Home Choice application; 

 Requests for service, for example, Officers may become aware of a 
vulnerability when a tenant reports a repair; 

Page 19



Vulnerability Policy 

 

Vulnerability Policy v1.1 /6-Mar-17 Page 4 

 

 Local knowledge, through observation and/or information gathered 
whilst carrying out day to day housing management functions, eg 
following a Tenancy Home Check or as a result of income recovery 
action; or 

 Information supplied by external agencies, for example, health, 
education or probation. 

 
5.3 There are many factors that may increase vulnerability, for example, 

mental health difficulties such as stress, anxiety, depression, dementia, 
bipolar disorder or schizophrenia. 

 
5.4 There may be risk factors associated with a person developing mental health 

difficulties, such as:- 

 Biological factors caused by genetics or hormone imbalance; 

 Physical factors, such as a disability; 

 Social factors, such as poverty, deprivation, being a victim of 
domestic abuse, unemployment or isolation; or 

 Psychological factors which refer to the kind of person someone is 
and the way they cope with life demands. 

 
5.5 Many people may have an increased risk of vulnerability.  The risk factors 

may include:-    

 A medical condition affecting their mental or physical health; 

 A learning or physical disability; 

 Language barriers; 

 Substance misuse and/or an addiction; 

 A recent history of homelessness; 

 Financial problems, such as debts; 

 Been a victim of domestic abuse or hate crime; 

 Breached their tenancy; 

 Had a relationship breakdown or suffered bereavement; or 

 Difficulty in sustaining a tenancy and at risk of losing their home: 

 Had a recent stay in hospital or other institutional care; 

 Been in care; 

 Just been released from prison 
 
5.6 There are a number of signs which may be taken as evidence of vulnerability 

(although there may be other indicators not included in this list): 
 

 Lives alone and lonely  

 Self neglect  

 Difficulty managing housekeeping tasks  

 Frail 

 Having mobility problems  

 Having a physical disability or other sensory difficulty  

 Hoarding or other behaviour which results in health and safety 
issues or damage to the Council’s property 

 Erratic behaviour  

Page 20



Vulnerability Policy 

 

Vulnerability Policy v1.1 /6-Mar-17 Page 5 

 

 A failure to respond to correspondence, telephone calls or visits  

 Being the victim or perpetrator of anti-social behaviour or 
harassment 

 Having difficulty managing finances and paying bills  

 Having an history of addiction or substance misuse  
 

5.8 Homeless households moving into the Council’s own housing stock may also 
be vulnerable and may require additional support to enable them to sustain 
their new tenancy. 
 

6.  Children and vulnerable adults 

6.1  The Council has a duty to protect children and vulnerable adults.  If it is 
brought to the Council’s attention where a situation has arisen where a child 
or a vulnerable adult is suspected or known to be at risk of abuse, Officers will 
refer to the Council’s Safeguarding Children and Vulnerable Adults Policy and 
Procedures.  They will also liaise with the relevant agencies to raise their 
concerns.  

6.2 Our Officers will have appropriate training to enable them to recognise signs 
of abuse of children or vulnerable adults; and to identify people who can no 
longer live independently.  If they recognise that a tenant needs help to look 
after themselves, or to protect themselves or their assets, appropriate 
referrals will be made.  

7.  Support available 

7.1  The Council recognises that vulnerability can be experienced on a temporary 
or long term basis.  Where vulnerability is highlighted, Officers of the Council 
will, where available, provide assistance or refer the individual to an 
alternative agency for advice and/or support. 

7.2 Housing applicants will be given an opportunity to discuss the needs of their 
household during the allocation process.   

7.3 There are two Community Housing Support Officers (CHSOs) who work 
within the Neighbourhood teams.  Their role is to enable tenants to live 
independently within the community, providing support to sustain their 
tenancies and promoting social inclusion. They are able to signpost or to refer 
tenants to other agencies which can provide support and/ or assistance, as 
necessary.  

7.4 These CHSOs will visit tenants who were previously homeless on a weekly 
basis for six weeks after the start of their tenancy, and after that, on an ad hoc 
basis, where necessary.  

 
7.5  The Council will provide support to a tenant to sustain their tenancy.  This 

may include: 

 Visiting new tenants six weeks after moving into their tenancy, or more 
frequently, if necessary, in the first few weeks after letting  

Page 21



Vulnerability Policy 

 

Vulnerability Policy v1.1 /6-Mar-17 Page 6 

 

 Providing aids and adaptations to promote independent living; 

 Providing financial help and advice 

 Providing advice on getting repairs done; 

 Providing documents in different formats , on  request 

 Sending documents to someone who can act on the behalf of the 
tenant, for example a family member or someone with Power of 
Attorney; 

 Carrying out home visits for those tenants who cannot access the 
Council’s Office;  

 The provision of a hearing loop at Phoenix House; 

 Offering a Lifeline alarm service, for a charge; 

 Liaising with other agencies with specialist knowledge and services;   

 Providing housing advice;  

 Providing extra security through the Sanctuary Scheme for victims of 
domestic abuse who wish to stay in their own home; and 

 Offering a referral to a mediation service where there is a neighbour 
disputes 

8. Additional services offered  

8.1  For elderly and vulnerable tenants who have recently moved into a Council 
property, up to two hours of one of our workmen’s time will be offered by the 
Housing Service, free of charge, to assist the tenant.  In order to qualify for 
this service, the tenant must apply within two weeks of moving into their home 
and must be aged over 65 and/or registered as disabled. 

8.2   The Council provides aids and adaptations for tenants or their household 
members who have a disability or who are suffering from long term ill health, 
to help them remain and live independently in the home.  This will be dealt in 
accordance with the Council’s Aids & Adaptations Policy. 

8.3   The Handyperson Scheme will assist tenants with gardening and home 
improvements for a charge.  All charges are in accordance to the National 
Housing Federation Schedule of Rates.  Types of minor works that will be 
carried out include: hanging pictures, putting up shelves, fixing curtain rails 
and putting together flat-pack furniture.  

 
8.4  The gardening service will be charged at an hourly rate plus VAT.  The type of 

service offered includes, cutting grass, clearing paths of weeds and trimming 
hedges and trees that do not exceed 4ft. 

8.5 The Council will offer a gas or electric cooker connection service at a 
competitive charge and this will be carried out by trained operatives.  

9. Recording Vulnerability  

9.1 The Housing Service uses an electronic integrated housing management 
system and appropriate flags will be used on this especially when an 
adjustment is required to tailor the service to meet the needs of the tenant. 

Page 22



Vulnerability Policy 

 

Vulnerability Policy v1.1 /6-Mar-17 Page 7 

 

9.2 Where appropriate, this information will be shared with contractors and other 
third parties, in accordance with the relevant legislation and regulations 
relating to data protection.  

9.3 All relevant information regarding vulnerabilities will be held electronically in 
the Council’s document management system and will be shared appropriately 
and in accordance with relevant legislation and regulations relating to Data 
Protection.   

10.  Service standards 

10.1  We are committed to the principles of openness and transparency and for this 
reason we will ensure that this policy is well-publicised.  If there are any 
operational matters which impact upon our ability to operate this policy, we 
will ensure that information about this is given to tenants and other 
stakeholders. 

11.  References 
 

 Housing Act 1985 

 Data Protection Act 1998 

 Homelessness Act 2002 

 Mental Capacity Act 2005 

 Equality Act 2010 

11. Equality and Diversity 

 11.1  The Housing Service tailors its services to meet the diverse needs of 
individuals. We foster good relations with people when providing services to 
eliminate discrimination and to promote opportunity of equality. 

11.2 When making any decision about how to resolve certain matters, usually 
involving breaches of tenancy, the Housing Service must take the Equality 
Duty in to account.  If someone is vulnerable, we will still take enforcement 
action but we must be able to demonstrate that we have reviewed the 
situation, taken account of all relevant factors and tailored our service to meet 
the needs of the tenant, and, where appropriate, considered alternative 
courses of action.   Such assessments are undertaken as a matter of routine 
by Officers dealing with day to day housing management issues.  

 12.  Review 

12.1  This Policy has been written in line with good practice and current relevant  
legislation.  Unless there are any changes to such legislation beforehand, the 
next review of this Policy is due March 2021 and every four years thereafter. 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



HOMES PDG        
14 MARCH 2017             

 
TELECARE POLICY  
 
Cabinet Member  Cllr Ray Stanley  
Responsible Officer Claire Fry, Housing Services Manager 
 
Reason for Report:  To explain the rationale for a new policy for the Housing 
Service relating to the lifeline alarm service they offer and to seek the adoption of 
this. 
 
RECOMMENDATION(S):  That Cabinet recommends the adoption of the Housing 
Service Community Alarm Policy. 
 
Relationship to Corporate Plan:  The Council must run the Housing Service 
efficiently and effectively in accordance with legislative requirements and the 
provisions of the regulatory framework. The Council must also consider the impact of 
an aging population and help people retain their independence and remain in their 
own home. 
 
Financial Implications:  Income from the lifeline alarm service is accounted for 
within the Housing Revenue Account and supports housing expenditure. 
 
Legal Implications:  Having a clearly defined policy ensures consistency of 
approach. 
 
Risk Assessment:   Failure to provide housing management staff with the 
appropriate policies could result in a less consistent and effective service. 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 The Council is committed to improving the Housing Service and generating 

additional income.   The implementation of a new Community Alarm Policy will 
provide guidance on the lifeline alarm service available to residents of Mid 
Devon. 

 
1.2  Tenants Together approved the draft Community Alarm Policy at their 

meeting on 2 March 2017.  
 
1.4 Cabinet is asked to consider the new policy and to agree the adoption of it. 
 
2.0 Overview of policy 
 
2.1 The policy provides a framework which sets out the Council’s approach to 

providing a lifeline alarm service for residents of Mid Devon to encourage 
them to remain and live independently in the home. 
 

2.2 As at 23 February 2017, 1198 residents are signed up to the alarm service 
which generates an income of £221,051.20. 
 
 

Page 25

Agenda Item 6



MDDC Report: Housing Services Community Alarm Policy 
V1.0 

 
 2.3  The policy explains the lifeline alarm service available to residents.  The 

Council offers a typical lifeline alarm unit which is supplied with a standard 
lifeline pendant.  The lifeline alarm provides help at the touch of a button, 24 
hours a day, 365 days a year. 

 

2.3 To meet the criteria for take up of the lifeline alarm service, the resident must 
live in Mid Devon.  They must supply a modern BT socket and a three pin 
electric socket close to the BT socket to enable installation of the lifeline alarm 
unit.  They must also provide additional information such as emergency 
contact details, relevant medical information which can be relayed to the 
emergency services. 
 

2.4 The policy explains that the Council will charge the resident for the rental of 
the lifeline alarm and pendant and the service it provides including a one off 
installation fee of the lifeline unit.  The rental charge includes the rental of the 
alarm, 365 days a year monitoring service and any repairs or the replacement 
of the alarm. 
 

2.5 To ensure that the Council has a regular income stream, if a resident falls 
behind with payments for the alarm service or do not make arrangements to 
clear the debts, the Council reserves the right to terminate the service 
received.  If the Council takes such action, it will be the responsibility of the 
resident to find an alternative provider. 
 

2.6 Tenants of the Council’s Housing Service who fall behind with payments will  
 be dealt with in accordance with the terms and conditions of their tenancy  
 agreement. 
 
2.7 It is recognised that residents may opt for a lifeline alarm service due to a 

number of reasons.  This maybe because of age, disability, ill health or simply 
because the resident lives alone and would like reassurance that help is 
available at a touch of a button. 
 

2.8 The policy acknowledges that there are other benefits of a lifeline alarm, such 
as, peace of mind that the resident is safe in their home, provides greater 
freedom to get on with day to day living, reduces anxiety for family, friends 
and carers and can lower the risk of unplanned admission to hospital. 

 
2.9 The Council is committed to the principles of openness and transparency  

and for this reason, the policy includes a clause relating to this.  If, for any 
reason, there are any operational matters which impact upon the Council’s 
ability to operate this policy, they will ensure that information about this is 
given to residents and other stakeholders. 

 
Contact for more Information: Claire Fry, Housing Services Manager (01884 
234920 cfry@middevon.gov.uk) 
 
Circulation of the Report: Councillor Ray Stanley, Management Team 
 
List of Background Papers:  A copy of such papers to be made available for public 
inspection and included on Website 

Page 26



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Mid Devon District Council 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Telecare Policy  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy Number: HSG v1.2 
 
  
 
 
March 2017 
  

Page 27



Telecare Policy 

 

Telecare Policy v1.2 /2-Mar-17 Page 2 

 

 
Version Control Sheet 
 
Title: Telecare Policy 
 
Purpose: To implement a new Telecare Policy in accordance with good practice and 
relevant legislative requirements. 
 
 
Owner: Housing Services Manager 
cfry@middevon.gov.uk  
Telephone number 01884 234920 
 
Date:  March 2017 
 
Version Number: v1.2 
 
Status: New policy 
 
Review Frequency: Every 4 years or sooner if required and in accordance with 
good practice and changes in legislation 
 
Consultation This document was sent out for consultation to the following: 
Cabinet Member 
Staff 
Tenants Together 
Management Team 
Homes PDG 
 
 
Document History 
This document obtained the following approvals. 
 

Title  Date Version 
Approved  

Cabinet Member 22 February 2017  

Tenants Together    

Management Team 7 March 2017  

Homes PDG   

Cabinet   

 

 

Page 28



Telecare Policy 

 

Telecare Policy v1.2 /2-Mar-17 Page 3 

 

1.   Introduction 

This policy statement outlines Mid Devon District Council’s (MDDC), Housing 
Service’s approach to providing a chargeable Lifeline alarm and other telecare 
services to clients who have need of such support. 

In delivering the Telecare Service, we aim to:  

 Promote the benefits of Telecare to older and more vulnerable people  

 Enable older and more vulnerable people to remain in their own homes  

 Keep clients safe and improve their quality of life  

 Work with health professionals to find the most appropriate equipment 
for clients  

 Offer new equipment to clients as new technological solutions are 
developed and are available  

 Provide help to clients which will help them to retain their 
independence “round the clock”, at the touch of a button 

 Provide a high quality service which delivers value for money  

2.   Scope 

This policy sets out how the Lifeline alarm service provides help at the touch 
of a button, 24 hours a day, 365 days a year.  It explains how this service and 
other telecare options can help to support older and more vulnerable people 
to remain living independently in their own homes and provides an overview 
of other related services.  This policy covers the following points and should 
be read in conjunction with the related documents as stated below:- 
 

 Services available 

 Eligibility and charges 

 Non-payment of charges 

 Purpose of the Lifeline alarm 

 Installation of the Lifeline alarm 

 Faults 

3.  Related Documents 
a. Tenancy Agreement 
b. Income Management Policy 
c. Service Standards 
d. Lifeline Alarm Service leaflet 
e. Complaints & Feedback Policy 

4. Definitions 

The following definitions apply to this policy: 
 

 Resident includes MDDC tenants, freeholders, leaseholders and 
private tenants 

Page 29



Telecare Policy 

 

Telecare Policy v1.2 /2-Mar-17 Page 4 

 

 Tenant means anyone who holds a Council tenancy with Mid Devon 
District Council 

 Telecare is the use of assistive technology to monitor the health and 
wellbeing of clients in their own homes. This technology is being 
continually developed and the range of equipment available is growing.  

 Lifeline is the name which the Council uses to describe our community 
alarm service.  

 Control Centre is the name used in relation to the service provided by 
Officers who monitor calls from the Council’s Lifeline clients   

5.  Services available 
 
5.1 The Council offers a Lifeline alarm service to clients.  A typical Lifeline alarm 

unit will be supplied with a standard Lifeline pendant.   
 
5.2 A Lifeline alarm unit enables a user to summon help once the unit button or 

pendant is pressed.  This sends a signal down the telephone line to the 
control centre where the specialist equipment is able to automatically inform 
staff who is calling.  Officers in the control centre will take appropriate action 
which may involve telephoning a friend or relative nearby with a request that 
they visit the client, or summoning the emergency services.  

 
5.3 The Lifeline pendant may be worn around the neck or on the wrist and is 

 water-proof for the shower or bath.  It enables a user to summon help 
anywhere in the home and adjacent garden, up to 50 metres from the unit, 
should the individual fall or become unwell, and if they are unable to get to a 
telephone. 
 
Other services are available and these include the provision of keysafes, and 
fall detectors.  
 

5.4 We will undertake a review of the personal details of clients, their needs and 
the help required on an annual basis to ensure that our records are accurate 
and that they are aware of the full range of services on offer which may be of 
interest to them.  This is important because other, newer equipment which 
may be of use or of interest to the client may have become available since the 
last time a review was undertaken.  
 

  
6.  Eligibility and charges  
 
6.1 Lifeline alarm service:  
6.1.1 If a client requests a Lifeline alarm system, they will need to have a telephone 

socket with an active landline near a three pin electrical socket. 
 
6.1.2   The Council will charge for the rental of the Lifeline alarm and pendant and 

the service it provides, including a one off installation fee of the Lifeline unit. 
 
6.1.3  The rental charge includes the rental of the alarm, the continual monitoring of 

the service and any repairs, or the replacement of the alarm except where this 

Page 30



Telecare Policy 

 

Telecare Policy v1.2 /2-Mar-17 Page 5 

 

is necessary as a result of tenant misuse or damage, when a charge may be 
made. 

 
6.1.4  The Council reserves the right to vary charges by giving at least four weeks’  

      written notice before any changes take effect.  These charges may increase 
or decrease from time to time.  Generally, the charges are reviewed at the 
same time as the annual rent increase and any changes are implemented at 
the beginning of a new financial year. 

 
6.2 Prices relating to other related services will be set by Officers taking into 

account the cost of provision, and any relevant on-costs. 
 
6.3 A schedule of charges will be publicised on our website.  
   
7.  Non-payment of charges 

7.1  If a resident falls behind with payments for the Lifeline alarm service and does 
not make arrangements to clear the debt, the Council reserves the right to 
terminate the service received.    If the Council takes such action, it will be the 
responsibility of the client to find an alternative provider. 

7.2 Our Officers will raise issues relating to non-payment with clients at an early 
stage.  They will be mindful of the clients health and other needs when 
discussing repayment options and, where necessary, action to recover any 
outstanding debts.  Any recovery action being considered will be subject to 
tests relating to reasonableness and proportionality taking into account the 
nature of the client the Telecare Service is designed to help.   

7.3  If tenants of the Council’s Housing Service fall into arrears with payments 
relating to telecare, action can be taken in accordance with the terms and 
conditions of their tenancy agreement. 

8.  Purpose of the Services Available 

 8.1  A Lifeline alarm benefits individuals who feel vulnerable in their home.  This 
may be due to age, disability, ill health or simply because they live alone and 
would like reassurance that help is available at a touch of a button.  

8.2  Other benefits of a Lifeline alarm include: 
 

 Peace of mind that the individual is safe in their home; 

 Provides greater freedom to get on with day to day living; 

 Reduces anxiety for family, friends and carers; and 

 Lowers the risk of unplanned admission to hospital 

 Reduces the potential need for moves into residential care  
 
8.3  The Lifeline can be used at any time of the day or night.  It enables people to 

live independently and provides a home safety and personal security system.  
When a resident presses the pendant or alarm button, a message is sent to 
the control centre where trained operators take the most appropriate action, 

Page 31



Telecare Policy 

 

Telecare Policy v1.2 /2-Mar-17 Page 6 

 

whether it is contacting the relevant emergency contact or services such as 
Police or Ambulance services.  

 
8.4 Telecare can help people to manage risk if they are older or more vulnerable.  

For example, if someone is concerned about a bogus caller, they can 
summon help using the Lifeline.  If they are concerned about falling, a fall 
detector can detect when someone has fallen and send an alert through to the 
operators in the control centre who will arrange a suitable response.  

 
8.5 The rationale for offering the other related services is that there may be many 

small jobs around the house that older and more vulnerable people cannot 
undertake, for a variety of reasons.    

 
8.6 Clients often want to know that the contractors that they are using to 

undertake repairs or other minor works are competent, and that they are 
trustworthy.  The workmen employed by the Council are all able to carry out 
any necessary work to a reasonable standard and are all bound to deliver a 
good level of service.  This can be reassuring for older or more vulnerable 
people. 

 

9.  Installation of the Lifeline alarm 

9.1  Before an alarm can be installed, the resident will be required to supply a 
modern BT socket and a three pin electric socket close to the BT socket. 

 
9.2   The resident will be required to provide the following information when the 

alarm is installed:- 

 Details of least two emergency contacts who live close by e.g next of 
kin, a neighbour, family member or friend who are willing to be called in 
the event of an emergency 

 GP’s name, address and contact details 

 If no emergency contacts details are given, the name, address and 
contact details of any carer/care agencies and/or social worker should 
be provided (if relevant) 

 Any relevant medical information (this can be relayed to emergency 
services). 

9.3  When a resident does not have an emergency contact that lives close by, they 
will be required to have a key safe installed at their property.  The Council can 
install a key safe for a charge. 

9.4  In the event that a key safe is to be installed, this will need to be mounted to 
the door or wall and be resistant to hammering and sawing for security 
purposes.  It must be able to hold the key and have a combination lock.  The 
number to the key safe must be supplied to us to the Council to pass onto the 
control centre who will only give the code out to the emergency services.  This 
will allow instant access to responding personnel in an emergency situation.  

Page 32



Telecare Policy 

 

Telecare Policy v1.2 /2-Mar-17 Page 7 

 

10. Faults 

10.1  The Council will respond to any faults with the Lifeline alarm equipment.  
However if there is no dialling tone on the telephone, the resident may have a 
line fault and it will be their responsibility to report this to their telephone 
provider.  The alarm will inform the resident that there is a telephone fault. 

10.2 If there is an electrical power cut the lifeline alarm unit will work for up to 36 
hours with the red light flashing, and some alarms may set off a beeping 
noise.  If the electrical power cut is more than a hour the lifeline alarm unit will 
automatically call the control centre to inform them that there is no electricity. 

10.3 If a fault to the equipment has arisen as a result of misuse by the client, then a 
charge may be applied.  Cases of this nature will be assessed on an 
individual basis, taking into account the personal circumstances of the client.  

11.  Service standards 

11.1  We are committed to the principles of openness and transparency and for this 
reason we will ensure that this policy is well-publicised.  If there are any 
operational matters which impact upon our ability to operate this policy, we 
will ensure that information about this is given to tenants and other 
stakeholders. 

11.2 Our Officers will be trained to understand the particular vulnerabilities of our 
client group and will therefore always have identification available if required. 

11.3 We will publicise the full range of Telecare and other related services and 
offer the most suitable equipment to enable clients to remain living 
independently in their own homes.  

11.4 We will replace defective equipment, as necessary, provided the damage was 
not caused by misuse.  

11.5 Our Officers are trained to understand their responsibilities in accordance with 
data protection and will treat all personal information in accordance with the 
relevant legislation.  

12. Complaints  

12.1 Any complaints about the Telecare service, or other related services, will be 
dealt with in accordance with the Council’s  

13. Equality and Diversity 

 12.1  The Housing Service tailors its services to meet the diverse needs of 
individuals. We foster good relations with people when providing services to 
eliminate discrimination and to promote opportunity of equality. 

Page 33



Telecare Policy 

 

Telecare Policy v1.2 /2-Mar-17 Page 8 

 

 13.  Review 

13.1  This Policy has been written in line with good practice and current relevant  
legislation.  Unless there are any changes to such legislation beforehand, the 
next review of this Policy is due January 2021 and every four years thereafter. 

 

Page 34



 

HOMES PDG            
14th March 2017 
 
PRIVATE SECTOR HOUSING FEES AND CHARGES 
 
Cabinet Member:       Cllr Ray Stanley     
Responsible Officer:  Simon Newcombe, Public Health & Professional  Services 
Manager 
 
Reason for Report: To provide members with the revised fees and charges for 
statutory and discretionary functions within the Private Sector Housing team. 
 
RECOMMENDATION(S): That Cabinet approve the revised fees as set out in 
Appendix 1 - Schedules 1 and 2. 
 
Relationship to the Corporate Plan:  
 
Economy - Improving and regenerating our town centres  

 Intervening in empty homes,  

 Ensuring that flats over shops are safe for occupation, and  

 Inspecting and regulating houses in multiple occupation that are often found 
in town centres. 

 
Homes – Facilitating the housing growth that Mid Devon needs, including 
affordable homes 

 Working with landlords to improve housing conditions across the private 
rented sector  

 Bringing empty homes back into use as housing across the various tenures 
including private rented, affordable rent and home ownership.  

 
Community - Promote physical activity, health and wellbeing 

 Working to improve health inequalities by ensuring the private housing sector 
is safe to live in and does not adversely affect health and wellbeing. 

 Enforcing standards within houses in multiple to ensure that vulnerable 
residents residing in these properties are protected from harm. 

 
Environment – Reduce our carbon footprint  

 Providing advice to residents on energy efficiency measures and fuel poverty 

 Ensuring that rented accommodation meets minimum energy efficiency 
requirements. 

 
Financial Implications: The revised fees and charges are set out in Appendix 1  of 
the report. The fees have been updated to reflect current service delivery costs. Any 
income generated from this activity is unpredictable based on the nature of 
enforcement action. It is therefore not possible to forecast any income levels for the 
year. 
 
Legal Implications: There are no major legal implications. Where there are specific 
provisions under legislation, statutory functions or discretionary services for fees to 
be charged then these are indicated in the body of the report. 
 

Page 35

Agenda Item 7



 

Risk Assessment: There are no major risks. A failure to update the relevant fees 
and charges could mean we are not able to adequately recover costs where we are 
able to do so. 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 The Private Sector Housing team within Public Health Services carries out 

duties to ensure that private accommodation meets minimum standards. In 
particular there are regulations for the licensing, management and use of 
houses in multiple occupation (HMO), carbon monoxide detectors and smoke 
alarms, and hazards within the home. 

 
1.2  All enforcement activities and relevant fees and charges within this report are 

set out in compliance with the legislation and the Public Health Services 
Enforcement Policy adopted in August 2016. 

 
2.0      Changes to the fees and charges 
 
2.1  A breakdown of the Council’s current and proposed charges in respect of the 

private sector housing functions is included in Appendix 1 Schedule 1. In 
addition Appendix 1 Schedule 2 provides 2016/17 comparative information on 
charges across Devon to provide a level of benchmarking. 
 
HMO Licensing 

2.2  Section 63(3) of the 2004 Act gives the Council the power to recover all 
reasonable costs associated with the administration of the HMO licensing 
function. 

 
2.3  The current HMO licensing fee was set in 2006 when licensing was first 

introduced and has not been revised since. 
 
2.4 The officer time and resources involved in processing a new application have 

been reviewed and a revised fee calculated. As part of this review the issuing 
of licence renewals has also been considered. 

 
Charging for enforcement action 

2.5  The Housing Act 2004 section 49 gives the local housing authority the power 
to charge for certain enforcement action. The provisions are clear that only 
the costs associated with determining whether enforcement action is 
necessary, identifying the type of action and the serving of the notice can be 
recovered.  

 
2.6  The average officer time and resources for carrying out these functions have 

been calculated and a standard fee has been proposed. 
 
2.7  Although the charge can be applied to all enforcement action under part one 

of the Act, it is proposed that the charge is only applied to Improvement 
notices, prohibition orders, emergency remedial action, emergency prohibition 
orders and demolition orders. 

 

Page 36



 

2.8  It is not considered appropriate to charge for the service of hazard awareness 
notices as these do not require the work to be carried out and are not placed 
as a local land charge.  

 
2.9  It is also proposed that demand for payment of the charge is only applied 

where emergency action is required, such as emergency remedial action and 
emergency prohibition orders or there is non-compliance with any notice that 
has been served. This will encourage compliance with notice requirements 
and housing standards generally. 

 
Immigration housing request visits 

2.10  Historically applications to live and/or work in the UK have required the local 
housing authority to undertake an inspection of the proposed living 
accommodation to check its suitability and ensure there would not be 
overcrowding. These visits no longer need to be undertaken by the local 
housing authority as part of an application but occasionally the team will 
receive a request to carry out a visit and provide a report. 

 
2.11  As this is not a statutory requirement it is acceptable for the Council to charge 

for the provision of this service. The proposed fee covers the average amount 
of officer time involved in dealing with a request, visiting and producing the 
relevant report. 

 
Financial penalties for Housing Act offences 

2.12  The Housing and Planning Act 2016 introduces an amendment to the Housing 
Act 2004 to allow local housing authorities to impose a financial penalty on an 
owner of a property where they have failed to comply with provisions under 
the 2004 Act as an alternative to prosecution. 

 
2.13  The maximum penalty will be £30,000, however the regulations relating to this 

provision have not yet been issued and therefore the manner in which the 
penalty is set has not been determined. 

 
Penalty Charges for offences under the Smoke and Carbon Monoxide 
Alarm (England) Regulations 2015 

2.14  The Smoke and Carbon Monoxide alarm regulations came into force on 1st 
October 2015. The local housing authority must publish a statement of 
principles which it proposes to follow in determining the amount of the penalty 
charge. 

 
2.15  Mid Devon District Council have not yet published such a statement and 

therefore has been unable to enforce these regulations. The private sector 
housing team intend to publish the statement of principles as soon as 
possible. 

 
2.16  The maximum penalty for an offence under these regulations is £5000. It is 

proposed that the Council introduces the maximum penalty with a 25% 
reduction if payment is made within 14 days of the demand for payment. 

 
 
 
 

Page 37



 

Financial penalties for offences under the Electrical Safety Standards 
2.17 Section 123 of the Housing and Planning Act 2016 makes provision for the 

local housing authority to impose a financial penalty on an owner of a property 
where they have failed to comply with the electrical safety standards.  

 
2.18  This part of the Act is due to come into force in April 2017 and regulations that 

detail how this will be enforced and how the penalty will be set are due before 
this comes into force. Once the regulations have been issued a financial 
penalty level can be set. 

 
 Works in default 
2.19  It is proposed that interest is paid on all costs associated with carrying out 

works in default (including the costs of the work itself) where the demand for 
payment remains unpaid after the initial 28 days. A £100 administrative fee is 
proposed with an interest rate of 3%. 

 
3.0 Summary 
 
3.1 There are a number of areas across private sector housing where recovery of 

costs or applying financial penalties could be introduced. At present Mid 
Devon District Council only applies a fee for HMO licensing applications. This 
report identifies the other areas where fees and charges can be applied and 
proposes that these be introduced as set out in Appendix 1.  

 
Contact for more Information: Tanya Wenham Lead Officer (Private Sector 
Housing) 01884 234610 / twenham@middevon.gov.uk 
 
Circulation of the Report: Cabinet Member for Homes, Homes PDG, Management 
Team 
  

Page 38

mailto:twenham@middevon.gov.uk


 

Appendix 1 
 
Schedule 1 – Private Sector Housing proposed charges/fees 
 

HMO licensing  
New licence  Current fee Proposed fee 

All HMOs £530  

   

3-5 Units  £793 

6-10 units  £838 

11+ units  £883 

   

Renewal £530  

3-5 Units  £658 

6-10 units  £680 

11+ units  £703 

 

Charging for enforcement action 
New licence  Current fee Proposed fee 

Improvement notice  £0 £333 

Prohibition Order £0 £333 

Emergency Remedial Action £0 £333 

Emergency prohibition order £0 £333 

Demolition Order £0 £333 

 

Immigration housing request visits 

New licence  Current fee Proposed fee 

All requests £0 £199 

 

Financial penalties 
 Current fee Proposed fee 

Smoke and carbon 
monoxide alarms 

£0 £5000 reducing by 25% if paid 
within 14 days of demand 

   

Electrical Safety Standards  TBC 

   

Housing Act offences  TBC 

 

Works in default 
 Current  Proposed fee 

Interest on works and 
associated costs 

0% £100 admin fee plus 3% interest 

  

Page 39



 

Schedule 2 – Benchmarking Local Authority Charges (fees current for 2016/17) 
 

Local authority HMO Licence 
fee 

HMO Licence 
Renewal fee 

Charge for 
notices 

Immigration 
visit fee 

Fixed penalty Notices for 
CO and smoke detectors 

West Devon/South 
Hams 

£350 £350 £38.50 £78 Not available 

      

East Devon £350 £350 Not available Not available £5000 50% reduction for 
payment within 14 days 

      

North Devon £418 £418 Not available Not available Not available 

      

Exeter £730 £730 £240-£273 £200 Not available 

      

Plymouth £800 £800 Not available Not available £5000 10% reduction for 
prompt payment 

      

Torridge £435 £435 £190-£222 Not available Not available 

      

Teignbridge DC £570 £360 £350 £85 £5000 50% reduction for 
payment within 14 days 

      

Torbay £840 £840 Not available Not available Not available 

      

Mid Devon proposed £793-£883 £658-£703 £333 £199 £5000 25% reduction for 
payment within 14 days 

 

Average for Devon £587 £549 £337 (not including 

West Devon/South 
Hams) 

£140 

 

P
age 40



CABINET                  AGENDA ITEM               
2 February 2017 
 

FINANCIAL UPDATE FOR THE NINE MONTHS TO 31 DECEMBER 2016  
 
Cabinet Member Cllr Peter Hare-Scott 
Responsible Officer Andrew Jarrett – Director of Finance, Assets & Resources 
 
Reason for Report: To present a financial update in respect of the income and 
expenditure so far in the year. 
 
RECOMMENDATION(S): 1. The Cabinet note the financial monitoring 
information for the income and expenditure so far for the 2016/17 financial 
year.                   
 
Relationship to the Corporate Plan: The financial resources of the Council 
impact directly on its ability to deliver the corporate plan; prioritising the use of 
available resources brought forward and any future spending will be closely 
linked to key Council pledges from the updated Corporate Plan. 
  
Financial Implications: Good financial management and administration 
underpins the entire document. 
 
Legal Implications: None. 
 
Risk Assessment: Regular financial monitoring information mitigates the risk of 
over or underspends at year end and allows the Council to direct its resources to 
key corporate priorities. 

 
 
 

1.0 Introduction 
  
1.1 The purpose of this report is to highlight to Cabinet our current financial 

status and the likely reserve balances at 31 March 2017. It embraces both 
revenue, in respect of the General Fund and Housing Revenue Account, 
and capital and aims to focus attention on those areas which are unlikely 
to achieve budget. It is particularly important for next year’s budget setting 
and, looking further ahead, with the medium term financial plan. 

 
1.2 Favourable variances generating either increased income or cost savings 

are expressed as credits (negative numbers), whilst unfavourable 
overspends or incomes below budget are debits (positive numbers).  This 
report only includes budget variances in excess of £10k as the purpose of 
the report is to concentrate on material issues that may require further 
investigation/action. Budget variances are expressed net of budgeted 
transfers to or from earmarked reserves, which were previously approved 
by Cabinet. A more detailed analysis will be provided with the final outturn 
report for the year. 
 
 
 
          

Page 41

Agenda Item 8



2.0    Executive Summary of 2016/17 
 
2.1 The table below shows the opening position of key operational balances of 

the Council, the forecast in year movements and final predicted position at 
31 March 2017: 

. 

Usable Reserves 31/03/2016 
Forecast in 

year movement 31/03/2017 

  £k £k £k 

Revenue    

General Fund 
(see paragraph 3.2) (2,211) 64 (2,147) 

Housing Revenue Account 
(see paragraph 4.2) (2,000) 0 (2,000) 

Capital    

Major Repairs Reserve 0 0       0    

Capital Receipts Reserve (1,442) (1,089) (2,531) 

Capital Contingency Reserve (567) 239 (328) 

 
 
3.0 The General Fund Reserve 

 
3.1 This is the major revenue reserve of the Council. It is increased or 

decreased by the surplus or deficit generated on the General Fund in the 
year. This reserve held a balance of £2,211k as at 31/03/16. 
  

3.2 The forecast General fund deficit for the current year is £64k (a movement 
of £12k since an annual variance of £52k was reported for November) as 
shown at Appendix A. The most significant service movements this month 
comprise: 

 
Reactive maintenance at EVLC & CVSC     £35k  
Development Control fees & charges              (£27)k 
  
 

3.3 The major variances are highlighted at Appendix B. The current incomes 
 from our major funding streams are shown at Appendix C, whilst current 

employee costs are shown at Appendix D. 
 

4.0 Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
 
4.1 This is a ring-fenced account in respect of the Council’s social housing 

function. Major variances and proposed corrective action are highlighted at 
Appendix F. 
 

 

Page 42



4.2 Appendix E shows that the reserve opening balance is £2m. It is 
anticipated that the forecast variance of £255k will affect the budgeted 
transfer to the Housing Maintenance Fund and so the HRA reserve 
balance should remain at £2m. 
 

4.3 Overall, the HRA is forecast to underspend of £255k in 2016/17, the most 
significant items of which comprise the following: 

 

 £117k of savings across Housing Services, including significant 
staffing savings across several teams, largely due to vacancies 
going unfilled for the early part of the year as well as several 
smaller variances in operational areas 

 £32k surplus is forecast on dwelling rent since this area is slightly 
ahead of target at this stage 

 £61k saving forecast where the Learning Disability service 
ceased to operate and fewer than expected new alarms need to 
be purchased since stock levels are healthy 

 
4.4 There are budgeted revenue contributions to capital projects as follows for 

2016/17. This sum will be placed in an earmarked reserve at year end to 
meet the anticipated spend in quarter 1 2017/18. 

 

Description Budget 
    £’000 

Forecast 
Outturn                   

£’000 

Variance 
      £’000 

1 x Tipper Vehicle 24 0 24 

 
4.5 The following works are expected to be funded from the Housing 

Maintenance Fund during 2016/17. Due to slippage on the projects 
detailed below it is anticipated that most of this funding will be required 
during 17/18. 

 

Description Budget 
    £’000 

Forecast 
Outturn                   

£’000 

Variance 
      £’000 

Birchen Lane re-
development 

40 52                12 

Palmerston Park 2,339 0 (2,339) 

Queensway development 299 0 (299) 

Burlescombe development 424 0 (424) 

Stoodleigh development 223 0 (223) 

 3,325 52 (3,273) 

 
In addition, £25k is planned to be spent on sewage treatment works and 
funded by an earmarked reserve. It is now anticipated this spend will slip 
into quarter 2 17/18. 

   
 
 
 Page 43



 
 
5.0 Major Repairs Reserve  

 
5.1 The Major Repairs Reserve had a nil balance at 31 March 2016. After this 

year’s capital expenditure and funding of the Major Repairs Reserve the 
closing balance is forecast to be £0k. Whilst there is a forecast 
underspend of £160k on the Capital Programme relating to ‘Major Repairs 
to Housing Stock’ this will remain in the Housing Maintenance Fund for 
future reprioritisation. 

 
6.0 Capital Programme 

 
6.1 Capital projects by their very nature often overlap financial years. In some 

cases it is known from the outset that the construction of buildings may fall 
into 3 separate accounting years. The status of this year’s capital 
programme is shown at Appendix G.  

 
6.2 Committed and Actual expenditure is currently £7,803k against a 

budgeted Capital Programme of £15,710k. (Note this includes £7,669k of 
slippage rolled forward from 15/16). As projects often overlap financial 
years officers have given their best estimate of what is ‘deliverable’ in 
16/17; this amounts to £10,583k. Committed and Actual expenditure will 
therefore be monitored against this & currently shows an uncommitted 
amount of £2,780k (£10,583k - £7,803k). 

 
6.3     At this stage in the year the forecast underspend amounts to £624k, 

£160k of this relates to major repairs to our housing stock and £130k for 
renewable energy projects, also associated with our housing stock; both 
these amounts will remain in their respective reserves for reprioritisation in 
future years. The remaining forecast underspend mainly relates to: £105k 
associated with the replacement of waste vehicles; due to changes in the 
waste scheme 3 of the 5 large vehicles budgeted to be replaced can be 
replaced with smaller vehicles, £84k in relation to various ICT projects, 
£50k in relation to a land drainage scheme to be delivered by DCC & 
£163k in relation to the project to bring the Department of Work and 
Pensions into Phoenix House, which will be more appropriately be coded 
to revenue and funded in full from a contribution from Department of Work 
and Pensions. 

 
6.4 Currently the forecast slippage to be carried forward to 17/18 amounts to 

£4,240k, this mainly relates to delays with the contractor for delivery of 
council house building projects at Palmerston Park and Birchen Lane 
amounting to £2,250k and replacement vehicles which will now be 
purchased during Q1 of 17/18 amounting to £1,153k, for further 
information on this detail please refer to Appendix G. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 44



 
 
7.0 Capital Contingency Reserve 
 
7.1 The Capital Earmarked Reserve has been set aside from Revenue to fund 

Capital Projects; the movement on this reserve is projected below:  
 

 
£k 

Capital Earmarked Reserve at 1 April 2016 (567) 

Funding required to support 2016/17 Capital Programme         239 

Forecast Balance at 31 March 2017 (328) 

 
 
8.0 Capital Receipts Reserve (Used to fund future capital programmes) 
 
8.1 Unapplied useable capital receipts are used to part fund the capital 

programme, the movement on this account for the year to date is given 
below: 
 

£k 

Unapplied Useable Capital Receipts at 1 April 2016 (1,442) 

Net Receipts to date (includes 20 “Right to Buy” Council 
House sales) 

    (1,538) 

Current Balance     (2,980) 

Forecast further capital receipts in year (350) 

Forecast capital receipts to be applied in year 
        799              

          

Forecast Unapplied Capital Receipts c/fwd. 31 March 2017 (2,531) 

 
8.2   Please note the majority of these balances on the Capital Contingency 

Reserve and the Capital Receipts Reserve are required to balance the 
Medium Term Financial Strategy. 

 
9.0 Treasury Management 

 
9.1 The interest position so far this financial year can be summarised as 

follows: 
 

Interest Receivable: 
 

Budget 
£k 

Forecast 
outturn 

£k 

Forecast 
variance 

£k 

Investment Income Received (171) (201) (30) 

Interest from HRA funding (54) (54) 0 

Total Interest Receivable (225) (255) (30) 

Page 45



10.0 Conclusion 
 
10.1 Members are asked to note the revenue and capital forecasts for the 

financial year. Managers have been working hard to offset overspends, 
many unavoidable or unforeseen, with budget savings to deliver an outturn 
close to the budget. 

 
10.2 The financial monitoring process has been important and the pressures 

and experience of the year to date fed into next year’s budget forecasts to 
ensure that the budget set is both robust and realistic. Indeed, after 
budgetary cuts for a number of years, it is clear that a number of service 
areas are stretched in providing services to our community within existing 
budgetary provision. 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Contact for more 
information: 

Andrew Jarrett, 01884 23(4242) 
ajarrett@middevon.gov.uk 

Circulation of the Report: Cllr Peter Hare-Scott, Management Team 
 

Page 46

mailto:ajarrett@middevon.gov.uk


Appendix A

2016/17 

Annual 

Budget Full Year Forecast Variance

(0 = On budget)

Com General Fund Summary Note £ £ %

Cllr C J Eginton

CM Corporate Management A 1,139,580 (10,000) -0.9%

LD Legal & Democratic Services: Member/Election Services B 579,870 (34,000) -5.9%

Cllr K Busch

CP Car Parks C (616,390) 10,400 1.7%

ES Cemeteries & Public Health D (47,610) 42,772 -89.8%

ES Open Spaces F 54,800 46,276 84.4%

GM Grounds Maintenance E 562,130 (34,030) -6.1%

WS Waste Services H 1,775,510 80,200 4.5%

Cllr C R Slade

CD Community Development I 414,980 10,000 2.4%

ES Environmental Services incl. Licensing D 552,870 28,920 5.2%

IT IT Services Q 879,310 (37,120) -4.2%

PR Planning - Land charges N (24,600) (22,000) 89.4%

RS Recreation And Sport J (82,410) 355,000 -430.8%

Cllr P H D Hare-Scott

FP Finance And Performance K 680,960 0 0.0%

RB Revenues And Benefits L 266,600 (47,000) -17.6%

Cllr R L Stanley

ES ES: Private Sector Housing Grants D 165,720 (12,100) -7.3%

HG General Fund Housing M 232,470 4,500 1.9%

PS Property Services G 272,580 39,220 14.4%

Cllr R J Chesterton

CD Community Development: Markets I (3,410) 45,000 1319.6%

PR Planning And Regeneration N 741,670 161,958 21.8%

Cllr M Squires

CS Customer Services O 860,060 (76,000) -8.8%

ES Environment Services - Public Health D 74,990 7,840 10.5%

HR Human Resources P 479,310 31,190 6.5%

LD Legal & Democratic Services: Legal Services B 215,730 (12,000) -5.6%

All General Fund Services 9,174,720 579,026 6.3%

Net recharge to HRA (1,265,490) 0

IE260 Interest Payable 146,030 0

IE290 Interest Receivable on Investments (171,000) (30,000)

Interest from Funding provided for HRA (54,000) 0

New Homes Bonus Grant (1,831,460) 0

Sundry Grants 0 0

ABFGF Statutory Adjustments (Capital charges) 400,720 0

TREMR Net Transfer to/(from) Earmarked Reserves APP B 2,169,990 (434,463)

TOTAL BUDGETED EXPENDITURE 8,569,510 114,563 1.3%

Non Domestic Rates - 15/16 Devon Pooling Gain (50,145)

Formula Grant (2,973,150) 0

Rural Services Delivery Grant (463,810) 0

Transitional Grant (31,630) 0

Council Tax (5,147,940) 0

CTS Funding Parishes 55,250 0

Collection Fund Surplus (8,230) 0

TOTAL BUDGETED FUNDING (8,569,510) 0 0%

Forecast in year (Surplus) / Deficit 0 64,418

General Fund Reserve 01/04/16 (2,211,035)

Forecast General Fund Balance  31/03/17 (2,146,617)

GENERAL FUND FINANCIAL MONITORING INFORMATION FOR THE 

PERIOD  01 APRIL TO 31 DECEMBER 2016

Page 47



Appendix B

Full Year

Forecast

Variation

(Net of Trf  

Note Description of Major Movements to EMR) PDG

D Environmental Services combined

(6,800) Homes

Private Sector Housing grant repayments (5,300) Homes

(12,100)

G Property Services

11,920 Homes

Overspend on professional fee for Town Hall 18,000 Homes

(35,000) Homes

Agency overspend in Property Services 7,000 Homes

Sale of Land - this has now been moved to Capital 0 Homes

Overspend on professional fee for sale of surplus land 6,000 Homes

Town Hall Maintenance overspend due to boilers replacement 7,560 Homes

Overspend against the Flood works budget (off-set by Flood EMR) 19,000 Homes

Overspend on external cleaning of Crediton Office 7,000 Homes

Rates savings on vacant Station Yard depot & Lords Meadow Depot (5,260) Homes

(8,000) Homes

Rates & services charges paid on two vacant units in Market Walk 18,000 Homes

Shortfall in rental income at year end due to back dated rent review of one tenant 10,000 Homes

Rental income & Feed in Tariff income from  Moorhayes Community 

Centre not budgeted for

(7,000) Homes

Rates reduction on Newcombes Meadow public convenience (10,000) Homes

39,220

M General Fund Housing

(5,500) Homes

Deposit and Rent Scheme(DARS) & B&B costs slightly above budget 5,000 Homes

(20,000) Homes

Provision on Deposit & Rent advances 25,000 Homes

4,500

31,620

Cabinet (137,930)

Community 494,718

Homes 31,620

Environment 135,218

Economy 55,400

579,026

0

GENERAL FUND FINANCIAL MONITORING INFORMATION FOR THE PERIOD  01 APRIL TO 31 DECEMBER 2016

Salary savings within Property Services due to vacant posts for part of the year (part off-set by Agency overspend

Salary savings from maternity leave not being backfilled and element of team leader post now in Affordable Housing

Refurbishment of the toilets at the Town Hall - funded from EMR (see below)

FORECAST  (SURPLUS)/DEFICIT AS AT 31/03/17

Private Sector Housing salary underspend due to 0.5 FTE vacant posts (off-set against E/Health)

Rates & service charge income from Department of Work and Pensions

Utilisation of Discretionary Housing Payment Funding greater than budgeted 

Page 48



(Net Trf  

Committee Net Transfers to / from Earmarked Reserves to EMR)

CD Community Development

Grant spend from Seed Fund earmarked reserve released (16,000)

New Homes Bonus monies earmarked for additional Grants and Funding Officer post (14,710)

Grand Western Canal grant funded by New Homes Bonus (45,000)

CM Corporate Management

CP Car Parks

CS Customer Services

Contribution towards digital strategy salaries (37,030)

Release of historic EMRs - no longer required (3,000)

ES Cemeteries & Public Health

EMR release for Public Health Officer (18,950)

Parks & Open Spaces Developers Contributions (7,860)

Play Area's Developers Contributions (10,870)

Newcombes Play Area enhancement funded from S106 Monies (9,326)

Public Health Initiative - Walking Football (940)

Public Health - Eco Stars Scheme (18,000)

FP Finance And Performance

GM Grounds Maintenance

HG General Fund Housing

HR Human Resources

Management Training 16/17 (30,000)

IT IT Services

Aerial photography ear marked reserve released (3,980)

LD Legal & Democratic Services: Member/Election Services

Contribution towards additional staffing requirement (14,180)

Release of unused EMR by Elections (7,000)

Release of unused EMR by Democratic Republic & Management (5,300)

OS Newcombes Meadow play area works to be funded from S106 (9,326)

Urgent repair to wall in Crediton (play area)? (15,950)

PR

Grant spend from High Street Innovation Fund ear marked reserve released (43,308)

New Homes Bonus monies earmarked for the Town Centre Manager post (26,640)

Contribution towards Economic Development activities (100,000)

Development Control earmarked reserve released (51,943)

New Homes Bonus used to cover £70k Exeter Strategic Partnership (70,000)

New Homes Bonus used to cover Exeter Strategic Partnership Fixed term post (10,330)

Local Plan examination in 2017/18 - transfer to EMR 78,000

Eastern Urban Extension - funds released from Capability Funding EMR (36,000)

Local plan development release funds from statutory development fund earmarked reserve (46,300)

PS Property Services

Town Hall Toilet refurbishment (11,300)

Market Walk Profit 202,410

Release of Market Walk profit (150,000)

Flood Works (19,000)

RB Revenues And Benefits

RS Recreation And Sport

WS Waste Services

New Homes Bonus monies earmarked for the new waste depot, move and fit out costs (256,000)

Various Sinking fund contributions for vehicles & plant 711,900

IE

New Homes Bonus monies earmarked for capital and economic regeneration projects 1,831,460

Net Transfer to / (from) Earmarked Reserves 1,735,527

2,169,990

Forecast Variance (434,463)

GENERAL FUND FINANCIAL MONITORING INFORMATION FOR THE PERIOD  01 APRIL TO 31 DECEMBER 2016

Budgeted Net Transfer to Reserves

Page 49



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 B
1

K
e

y
+

 =
 O

v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 /

 I
n
c
o
m

e
 u

n
d
e
r 

ta
rg

e
t

- 
=

 S
a
v
in

g
s
 /

 I
n
c
o
m

e
 a

b
o
v
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t

C
D

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

C
M

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

IT
I.
T

. 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

C
P

C
a

r 
P

a
rk

s
L

D
L
e
g
a
l 
a
n
d
 D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c

C
S

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

P
R

P
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

E
S

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

P
S

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

F
P

F
in

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

R
B

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 B
e

n
e

fi
ts

G
M

G
ro

u
n
d
s
 M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e

R
S

R
e

c
re

a
ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 S

p
o

rt
s

H
G

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
 H

o
u
s
in

g
W

S
W

a
s
te

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

H
R

H
u
m

a
n
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

-1
0
0
,0
0
0

-5
0
,0
0
00

5
0
,0
0
0

1
0
0
,0
0
0

1
5
0
,0
0
0

2
0
0
,0
0
0

2
5
0
,0
0
0

3
0
0
,0
0
0

3
5
0
,0
0
0

4
0
0
,0
0
0

2
0

1
6

/1
7

 G
e

n
e

ra
l 

F
u

n
d

 P
ro

je
ct

e
d

 O
u

tt
u

rn
 V

a
ri

a
n

ce
 £

 

Page 50



Appendix C

Full Year

2016/17 2016/17 2016/17 2016/17 Forecast Variance

Annual Budget Profiled Budget Actual Variance Variation

£ £ £ £ £ %

Building Control Fees (280,000) (210,000) (189,409) 20,591 20,000 -7%

Planning Fees (834,000) (625,500) (543,612) 81,888 109,000 -13%

Land Searches (110,460) (82,845) (100,974) (18,129) (20,000) 18%

Car Parking Fees - See Below (814,200) (626,155) (605,139) 21,016 37,000 -5%

Leisure Fees & Charges (2,685,020) (1,955,180) (1,790,614) 164,566 150,000 -6%

Trade Waste Income (656,000) (646,160) (640,384) 5,776 0 0%

Garden Waste Scheme (500,000) (375,000) (341,793) 33,207 90,000 -18%

Licensing (120,700) (101,948) (109,911) (7,963) (10,000) 8%

Market Income (122,470) (91,853) (65,426) 26,427 35,000 -29%

(6,122,850) (4,714,641) (4,387,262) 327,379 411,000 -6.7%

Bud Income

Pay and Display Spaces pa per space

Beck Square,Tiverton (83,780) (64,938) (66,930) (1,992) 40 (2,095)

William Street,Tiverton (30,780) (22,320) (21,190) 1,130 45 (684)

Westexe South,Tiverton (45,800) (35,072) (36,199) (1,127) 51 (898)

Wellbrook Street,Tiverton (13,540) (10,287) (11,699) (1,412) 27 (501)

Market Street,Crediton (36,420) (27,682) (30,138) (2,456) 39 (934)

High Street,Crediton (79,330) (61,559) (57,242) 4,317 190 (418)

Station Road,Cullompton (34,900) (27,584) (31,292) (3,708) 112 (312)

Multistorey,Tiverton (167,980) (125,182) (93,680) 31,502 631 (266)

Market Car Park,Tiverton (216,120) (162,946) (166,919) (3,973) 122 (1,771)

Phoenix House,Tiverton (3,680) (2,745) (3,283) (538) 15 (245)

P&D Shorts & Overs 0 0 49 49 0 0

(712,330) (540,315) (518,523) 21,792 1,272 (8,124)

Day Permits (31,000) (31,000) (13,362) 17,638

Allocated Space Permits (26,040) (26,040) (32,993) (6,953)

Overnight Permits (1,000) (1,000) (195) 805

Day & Night Permits 0 0 (7,375) (7,375)

Market Walk Permits (9,380) (9,380) (14,099) (4,719)

Other Income (34,450) (18,420) (18,592) (173)

(814,200) (626,155) (605,139) 21,015 10,200

Standard Charge Notices (Off Street) (28,000) (21,000) (33,170) (12,170) (14,000)

GENERAL FUND FINANCIAL MONITORING INFORMATION FOR THE PERIOD  01 APRIL TO 31 DECEMBER 2016

Page 51



Appendix D

2016/17 2016/17 2016/17 2016/17

Annual Budget Profiled Budget Actual Variance

Total Employee Costs £ £ £ £

General Fund 

Community Development 295,180 221,385 236,396 15,011

Corporate Management 901,960 676,470 656,994 (19,476)

Customer Services 764,610 573,458 504,096 (69,362)

Environmental Services 923,320 692,490 726,695 34,205

Finance And Performance 632,710 474,533 467,098 (7,435)

General Fund Housing 197,330 147,998 141,333 (6,665)

Grounds Maintenance 448,900 336,675 292,572 (44,104)

Human Resources 361,460 271,095 285,874 14,779

I.T. Services 522,100 391,575 355,216 (36,359)

Legal & Democratic Services 417,660 313,245 285,529 (27,716)

Planning And Regeneration 1,525,620 1,144,215 1,012,454 (131,761)

Property Services 385,320 288,990 259,555 (29,435)

Recreation And Sport 1,630,750 1,223,063 1,292,871 69,808

Revenues And Benefits 668,450 501,338 512,453 11,115

Waste Services 1,863,780 1,397,835 1,325,981 (71,854)

11,539,150 8,654,365 8,355,118 (299,247)

Housing Revenue Account

SHO13A Repairs & Maintenance 593,480 445,110 438,738 (6,372)

SHO17A Housing & Tenancy Services 1,432,670 1,074,503 983,430 (91,073)

SHO22 Alarms expenditure 66,720 50,040 25,176 (24,864)

2,092,870 1,569,653 1,447,344 (122,309)

Total 13,632,020 10,224,018 9,802,463 (421,555)

2016/17 2016/17 2016/17 2016/17

Annual Budget Profiled Budget Actual Variance

Agency Staff £ £ £ £

General Fund 

Car Parks 0 0 0 0

Community Development 0 0 0 0

Corporate Management 0 0 0 0

Customer Services 0 0 2,432 2,432

Environmental Services 0 0 11,592 11,592

Finance And Performance 0 0 0 0

General Fund Housing 0 0 0 0

Grounds Maintenance 5,000 3,750 21,551 17,801

Human Resources 0 0 0 0

I.T. Services 0 0 0 0

Legal & Democratic Services 0 0 5,864 5,864

Planning And Regeneration 0 0 0 0

Property Services 0 0 7,112 7,112

Recreation And Sport 0 0 0 0

Revenues And Benefits 0 0 0 0

Waste Services 128,500 96,375 148,600 52,225

133,500 100,125 197,151 97,026

Housing Revenue Account

SHO13A Repairs & Maintenance 0 0 0 0

SHO17A Housing & Tenancy Services 0 0 28,923 28,923

SHO22 Alarms expenditure 0 0 0 0

0 0 28,923 28,923

Total 133,500 100,125 226,073 125,948

GENERAL FUND FINANCIAL MONITORING INFORMATION FOR THE PERIOD  01 APRIL TO 31 

DECEMBER 2016

Page 52



Appendix E

2016/17 Annual 

Budget Forecast Variance

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Notes £ £ %

 

Income

SHO01 Dwelling Rents Income A (12,593,760) (32,000) 0.3%

SHO04 Non Dwelling Rents Income B (554,070) (16,000) 2.9%

SHO06 Tenant Charges For Services C (42,360) 32,000 -75.5%

SHO07 Leaseholders' Service Charges D (23,540) 2,000 -8.5%

SHO08 Contributions Towards Expenditure E (33,720) 0 0.0%

SHO09 Alarm Income - Non Tenants F (194,660) (15,000) 7.7%

SHO10 H.R.A. Investment Income G (40,000) 0 0.0%

SHO11 Miscellaneous Income H (19,000) 15,000 -78.9%

Services

SHO13A Repairs & Maintenance I 3,214,780 (71,000) 0.0%

SHO17A Housing & Tenancy Services J 1,354,750 (117,000) -8.6%

SHO22 Alarms expenditure K 152,200 (61,000) -40.1%

Accounting entries 'below the line'

SHO29 Bad Debt Provision Movement L 25,000 0 0.0%

SHO30 Share Of Corporate And Democratic M 177,400 1,000 0.6%

SHO32 H.R.A. Interest Payable N 1,268,030 0 0.0%

SHO34 H.R.A. Transfers between earmarked reserves O 2,393,010 0 0.0%

SHO36 H.R.A. R.C.C.O. P 24,000 (24,000) -100.0%

SHO37 Capital Receipts Reserve Adjustment Q (20,800) 0 0.0%

SHO38 Major Repairs Allowance R 2,800,000 31,000 1.1%

SHO45 Renewable Energy Transactions S (130,000) 0 0.0%

(2,242,740) (255,000) -11.4%

Net recharge to HRA 1,265,490

Capital Charges 977,250

Net Housing Revenue Account Budget 0

£k

(2,000)

0

(2,000)

£k

(8,886)

52

(1,704)

Forecast variance for the year (see above) (255)

Forecast closing balance (10,793)

£k

(342)

70

(164)

(436)Forecast closing balance

Renewable Energy Fund

Opening balance

Reserve utilised for capital works (see appendix G)

Budgeted transfer to reserves

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT FINANCIAL MONITORING INFORMATION FOR 

THE PERIOD  01 APRIL TO 31 DECEMBER 2016

Opening balance

Expenditure forecast for this year (see appendix G)

Net income forecast for this year

Total HRA reserve as at 01/04/16

Forecast HRA reserve as at 31/03/17

Forecast movement in the year

Housing Revenue Account

Housing Maintenance Fund

Page 53



Appendix F

Forecast

Variance

Note Description of Major Movements Corrective Action £

A Dwelling rent is 0.3% ahead of target N/A (32,000)

B Garage income is ahead of target N/A (16,000)

C The Learning Disability Support contract has ceased to operate N/A 32,000

D Minor variance N/A 2,000

F Community Alarm sales continue to be high N/A (15,000)

H

Miscellaneous income items have been fewer than typical during 

2016/17 None 15,000

I

Several smaller savings across the Repairs team combine to give 

this forecast variance N/A (71,000)

J

Savings due to restructuring of staffing across several teams as 

well as several smaller savings across operational budgets N/A (117,000)

K

The Learning Disability Support contract has ceased to operate 

and there is less need than anticipated for new equipment 

purchase. N/A (61,000)

M Minor variance N/A 1,000

P Tipper vehicle will now be purchased during 2017/18 N/A (24,000)

R

£2,831,000 is expected to be spent on major works this year (see 

appendix G) None 31,000

TOTAL (255,000)

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT FINANCIAL MONITORING INFORMATION FOR THE PERIOD  01 

APRIL TO 31 DECEMBER 2016

Page 54



MID DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL Appendix G

MONITORING OF 2016/17 CAPITAL PROGRAMME

Deliverable Actual Committed Variance to  Adj Forecast Forecast Notes

Capital Expenditure Expenditure Total Capital (Underspend)/ Slippage

Code Scheme Programme 2016/17 2016/17 Programme Overspend to 17/18

2016/17

£ £ £ £ £ £ £

General Fund Projects

Lords Meadow leisure centre 

CA624 Main car park resurfacing 50,000 0 0 0 (50,000) 50,000 Forecast completion Q1 17/18.

Exe Valley leisure centre 
CA627 EVLC - Pressure set replacement Hot/Cold 35,000 0 0 0 (35,000) Forecast completion Q4 16/17

CA626 EVLC - Fitness extension - subject to business case * 22,000 26,169 25,284 51,454 29,454 30,000

Planning approved. Planned commencement April 2017 with anticipated 

completion Nov '17

* Note £500k in 15/16 will be slipped to 16/17

Phoenix House

CA451 Phoenix House - Ground Floor changes - subject to business case 163,000 0 0 0 (163,000) (163,000)

Costs in relation to this project have more appropriately been charged to 

revenue, however these will be fully reimbursed in payment from DWP

Pannier Market
CA505 Pannier Market -Pedestrian roof cover - subject to business case ** 0 0 0 0 0 Project no longer required - to be reviewed at Mgmt Team

** Note £110k in 15/16 will be slipped to 16/17

CA507 Tiverton Pannier Market Pigpens 73,000 3,143 0 3,143 (69,857) 50,000 Forecast completion Q1 17/18

CA508 Pannier Market Clock Tower 34,000 1,479 32,000 33,479 (521) 4,500

Forecast completion by 31/03/17. Additional costs for Scaffolding & Crane 

needed to be re erected as original supplier went into administration circa 

£4.5k. Additional cost will be funded from an EMR.

MSCP Improvements 

CA709 MSCP improvements (refer to Matrix condition report) 50,000 (7,098) 7,098 0 (50,000) 50,000

Capital works on hold pending Premier Inn project. Anticipated spend Q3 

17/18

Play Areas
CA608 Play area refurbishment - Wilcombe Tiverton 50,000 0 59,995 59,995 9,995 8,900 Project complete Q3 16/17

CA628 Play area refurbishment - West Exe Recreation Ground Tiverton 50,000 0 2,300 2,300 (47,700) 48,000 Forecast completion Q2 17/18

Other Projects

CA403 Town Hall Redevelopment Project 20,000 10,175 6,267 16,442 (3,558) 16,000

CSAG selected preferred option £5,114k in 17/18 Capital Programme. 

Further Architects design works to be commissioned

CA420 Land drainage flood defence schemes - Ashleigh Park Bampton 67,000 0 0 0 (67,000) 67,000

EA will manage project - delivery due in 18/19. MDDC  will contribute £67k to 

project

CA448 Angel Hill improvements 15,000 4,749 0 4,749 (10,251)

CA449 Town centre/Market area fibre optic hub and camera system 30,000 38,612 0 38,612 8,612 8,600

CA452 Station Yard re construct shower block welfare 35,000 0 0 0 (35,000)

Heads of terms being negotiated between interested party. Unsure at this 

stage whether any additional costs to facilitate leasing the land.

CA453 Land drainage flood defence scheme - Newton St Cyres 50,000 0 0 0 (50,000) (50,000) Project to be managed & delivered by DCC

CA454 Phoenix Lane - Conversion to homeless shelter 60,000 1,626 0 1,626 (58,374) 40,000

Forecast completion Q2 17/18. Currently examining future options for these 

premises

CA455 St Lawrence Green Project 30,000 0 0 0 (30,000) Forecast completion Q4 16/17

CA826 Waste move - Porta Cabins at Carlu Close 114,000 113,910 0 113,910 (90) Project complete

ICT Projects
CA421 Replacement of PC estate 330s 40,000 0 0 0 (40,000) 40,000 Forecast completion Q1 17/18

CA423 Continued replacement of WAN/LAN 60,000 0 0 0 (60,000) Forecast completion Q4 16/17

CA425 Server farm expansion/upgrades 108,000 12,028 0 12,028 (95,972) 32,000 £76k forecast spend by Q4 16/17. £32k to slip into 17/18

CA433 Unified Communications/telephony 25,000 0 0 0 (25,000) (25,000)

Budget not required. Sufficient funding in EMR reserve (£107k) to fund 

project in 17/18

CA437 Digital Transformation 104,000 40,400 2,375 42,775 (61,225) 53,000 £53k forecast slippage , Projects to be identified during Jan'17

CA439 Mobile Working NDL MX 39,000 32,000 7,000 39,000 0

CA442 Arc Server Spatial (open Source Mapping) 18,000 0 0 0 (18,000) (18,000) Budget not required. This work was completed in 15/16

CA446 E-Financials Technical refresh 30,000 18,985 11,000 29,985 (15) Forecast completion Q4 16/17

CA456 Digital Transformation - replacement of CRM 50,000 0 0 0 (50,000) 50,000

CRM planned replacement in 17/18 with additional £50k requested in MTFP 

to give a total project budget of £100k

CA457 Digital Transformation including Cosmic for Mid Devon 20,000 0 0 0 (20,000) (20,000) Budget no longer required

CA444 SQL/Oracles refreshes 50,000 13,289 13,888 27,177 (22,823) (21,000)

Forecast completion Q4 16/17. Forecast spend circa £28k. Circa £20k of this 

underspend will be for expenditure that is under Capital diminimis and 

therefore coded to revenue - ICT £12.8k and £6.9k to Accountancy.

Replacement Vehicles - Grounds Maintenance
CA712 Iveco Tipper (or equivalent) 24,000 0 0 0 (24,000) 24,000 Forecast purchase Q1 17/18

Replacement Vehicles - Refuse Collection
CA814 Dennis Eagle Terberg RCV 22-26t (or equivalent) 160,000 0 0 0 (160,000) 160,000 Forecast purchase Q1 17/18

CA821 5 Refuse Vehicles  with Food waste capability *** 900,000 0 0 0 (900,000) (105,000) 795,000

Forecast purchase Q1 17/18. Savings due to changes in waste scheme 

meaning not all vehicles are required to have the same carrying capacity. 3 * 

£180k Dennis Eagle  & 3 * £85k small refuse vehicles

*** Note £740k in 15/16 will be slipped to 16/17

CA822 7.5T Tipper 100,000 0 0 0 (100,000) (25,000) 75,000 Anticipated cost £75k. On hold pending Clinical Waste review

Replacement Vehicles - Street Cleansing
CA825 3.5T Tipper 25,000 0 0 0 (25,000) 25,000 50,000 Forecast purchase Q1 17/18. Includes 3.5t delivery van

CA827 3.5T Tipper 25,000 0 0 0 (25,000) 25,000 Forecast purchase Q1 17/18

2,726,000 309,468 167,206 476,674 (2,249,326) (334,000) 1,609,000

P
age 55



Deliverable Actual Committed Variance to  Adj Forecast Forecast Notes

Capital Expenditure Expenditure Total Capital (Underspend)/ Slippage

Code Scheme Programme 2016/17 2016/17 Programme Overspend to 17/18

2016/17

Private Sector Housing Grants
CG215 Works in Default Grants 9,513 8,130 17,643 17,643

CG216 Private Sector Housing initiatives to be prioritised 104,000 0 0 0 (104,000) 86,000

CG201 Disabled Facilities Grants–Private Sector 468,000 234,701 77,332 312,033 (155,967) 118,000

Forecast spend by 31/03/17 £350k. The pass ported DFG grant of £505k from 

DCC will fund this spend

Please note where possible commitments are raised on the Finance Ledger. Currently the total commitment for Private Sector Housing Grants held outside the ledger is £85k.

This underspend includes underspent budget on Private Tenant DFG's amounting to *£156k; these are effectively ring fenced, therefore leaving £86k uncommitted. (£242k - £156k)

Commitments include all approved grants. The timing of when these are drawn down is dependent on the client (up to 1 year), therefore at year end although sums may be committed, some may be carried forward to 2017/18 as slippage.

572,000 244,214 85,462 329,676 (242,324) 0 204,000

Affordable Housing Projects 
CA200 Grants to Housing Associations to provide units (funded by commuted sum) 100,000 16,246 0 16,246 (83,754) 80,000 Commitment likely to crystallise in 17/18

100,000 16,246                          -                                16,246                          (83,754) 0 80,000

Total General Fund Projects 3,398,000 569,928 252,668 822,596 (2,575,404) (334,000) 1,893,000

Deliverable Actual Committed Variance to  Adj Forecast Forecast Notes

Capital Expenditure Expenditure Total Capital (Underspend)/ Slippage

Code Scheme Programme 2016/17 2016/17 Programme Overspend to 17/18

2016/17

£ £ £ £ £ £ £

HRA Projects

CA100 Major repairs to Housing Stock 2,991,000 1,743,643 890,424 2,634,067 (356,933) (160,000)

£160k forecast underspend is in relation to the following: £65k Boiler works, 

£45k contract works & £50k structural works; this will remain in the HMF for 

future reprioritisation. 

CA111 Renewable Energy Fund Spend 200,000 70,000 0 70,000 (130,000) (130,000) £130k will be reprioritised for spending in 17/18

CA112 Birchen Lane - re development of unit for housing conversion (4 units) 367,550 192,184 175,370 367,554 4 150,000 Forecast completion Q2 17/18. Contract to be renegotiated

CA119 Palmerston Park Tiverton - affordable dwellings (26 units) 3,160,700 994,165 2,667,049 3,661,214 500,514 2,100,000

Full contract commitment on system, circa £2.1m works will roll forward to 

17/18 from 'Deliverable Budget'. Forecast completion Q3 17/18

CA122 Iveco Tipper 3.5t (or equivalent) 24,000 0 0 0 (24,000) 24,000 Forecast purchase Q1 17/18

CA124 Queensway (Beech Road) Tiverton (3 units) 10,000 0 0 0 (10,000) 5,000

Some feasibility work will be undertaken in 16/17. Forecast completion Q4 

17/18

CG200 Disabled Facilities Grants - Council Houses 297,000 238,017 0 238,017 (58,983)

CA120 Burlescombe (6 units) **** 80,000 90 4,860 4,950 (75,050) 23,000

Some feasibility work will be undertaken in 16/17. Forecast completion Q4 

17/18

**** Note £700k in 15/16 will be slipped to 16/17

CA125 Waddeton Park - (70 units) 10,000 4,640 0 4,640 (5,360) 5,000

Costs associated around land purchase are likely to occur in 17/18. Spoken 

with responsible officer & 'Deliverable Programme' adjusted accordingly. Site 

subject to Judicial review

CA126 Sewerage Treatment Works - Washfield 25,000 0 0 0 (25,000) 25,000 Forecast completion Q2 17/18

CA127 * Stoodleigh - Pending feasibility (4 units) 20,000 0 0 0 (20,000) 15,000

Some feasibility work will be undertaken in 16/17. Forecast completion Q4 

17/18

Total HRA Projects 7,185,250 3,242,739 3,737,703 6,980,442 (204,808) (290,000) 2,347,000

CAPITAL PROGRAMME GRAND TOTAL SPEND 10,583,250 3,812,667       3,990,371       7,803,038       (2,780,212) (624,000) 4,240,000

P
age 56



 

HOMES PDG         
14TH MARCH 2017                  
 
PERFORMANCE AND RISK REPORT FOR 2016-17 
 
Cabinet Member  Cllr Ray L Stanley 
Responsible Officer Director of Corporate Affairs and Business 
Transformation, Jill May 
 
Reason for Report:  To provide Members with an update on performance against 
the corporate plan and local service targets for 2016/17 as well as providing an 
update on the key business risks. 
 
RECOMMENDATION(S): That the PDG reviews the Performance Indicators and 
Risks that are outlined in this report and feeds back any areas of concern to the 
Cabinet. 
 
Relationship to Corporate Plan: Corporate Plan priorities and targets are 
effectively maintained through the use of appropriate performance indicators and 
regular monitoring. 
 
Financial Implications:  None identified 
 
Legal Implications: None   
 
Risk Assessment:  If performance is not monitored we may fail to meet our 
corporate and local service plan targets or to take appropriate corrective action 
where necessary.  If key business risks are not identified and monitored they cannot 
be mitigated effectively. 
 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 Appendix 1 provides Members with details of performance against the 

Corporate Plan and local service targets for the 2016-17 financial year. 
 

1.2 Appendix 2 shows the section of the Corporate Risk Register which relates to 
the Homes Portfolio. See 3.0 below. 
 

1.3 Appendix 3 shows the profile of all risks for Homes for this quarter. 
 

1.4 All appendices are produced from the corporate Service Performance And 
Risk management system (SPAR). 

 
2.0 Performance 
 
2.1 Performance in respect of Housing Rents, Rent Collected as a Proportion 

of Rent Owed and Rent Arrears as a Proportion of Annual Rent Debit is 
on or above target, and the Percentage of Decent Council Homes has 
remained at 100% for the last quarter. 
 

Page 57

Agenda Item 9



 

2.2 The PI for the Average Days to Re-let time has shown improvement since 
the last report; the average number of days has reduced by 1.4 days since 
December and brought it back to 14.9 days against a target of 16 days. 
 

2.3 There is still one property where the gas certificate has expired, but the 
reason for this is explained fully within the PI report. 

 
2.4 When benchmarking information is available it is included. 

 
3.0 Risk 
 
3.1 The Corporate risk register has been reviewed by Management Team (MT) 

and updated. Risk reports to committees include risks with a total score of 15 
or more and all those with an impact score of 5. (See Appendix 2) 

 
4.0 Conclusion and Recommendation 
 
4.1 That the PDG reviews the performance indicators and risks for 2016-17 that 

are outlined in this report and feeds back any areas of concern to the Cabinet. 
 
Contact for more Information: Catherine Yandle, Audit Team Leader ext 4975 
 
Circulation of the Report: Management Team and Cabinet Member 

Page 58



Corporate Plan PI Report Homes

Monthly report for 2016-2017
Arranged by Aims

Filtered by Aim: Priorities Homes
For MDDC - Services

Key to Performance Status:

Performance Indicators: No Data
Well below 

target
Below target On target Above target

Well above 
target

* indicates that an entity is linked to the Aim by its parent Service 

Printed by: Nicola Chandler SPAR.net Print Date: 24 February 2017 14:04

Build Council Houses 14 30 n/a n/a 0 n/a n/a 0 n/a n/a 0 n/a n/a 0 (3/4) Nick 
Sanderson

(Quarter 3) 4 Houses to be built in Birchen Lane by the end of February 
2017, and the remainder of 30 to be built by the end of August 2017. 
(NS)

Performance Indicators

Title Prev 
Year 

(Period)

Prev 
Year 
End

Annual 
Target

Apr 
Act

May 
Act

Jun 
Act

Jul 
Act

Aug 
Act

Sep 
Act

Oct 
Act

Nov 
Act

Dec 
Act

Jan 
Act

Feb 
Act

Mar 
Act

Actual 
to 

Date

Head of 
Service / 
Manager

Officer Notes

Aims: Build more council houses

Number of affordable homes 
delivered (gross)

19 (3/4) 27 80 n/a n/a 16 n/a n/a 19 n/a n/a 27 n/a n/a 27 (3/4) Angela 
Haigh

Deliver 15 homes per year by 
bringing Empty Houses into use

5 (3/4) 8 15 0 1 2 3 5 5 5 10 17 21 21 (10/12) Simon 
Newcombe

Performance Indicators

Title Prev 
Year 

(Period)

Prev 
Year 
End

Annual 
Target

Apr 
Act

May 
Act

Jun 
Act

Jul 
Act

Aug 
Act

Sep 
Act

Oct 
Act

Nov 
Act

Dec 
Act

Jan 
Act

Feb 
Act

Mar 
Act

Actual to 
Date

Head of 
Service / 
Manager

Officer Notes

Aims: Facilitate the housing growth that Mid devon needs, including affordable housing

Local Plan 
Review

n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a Jenny 
Clifford

Number of 
Successful 
Homelessness 

236 (3/4) 295 No Target 
- for 

information 

n/a n/a 70 n/a n/a 136 n/a n/a 224 n/a n/a 224 (3/4) Angela 
Haigh

Performance Indicators

Title Prev Year 
(Period)

Prev 
Year 
End

Annual 
Target

Apr Act May Act Jun Act Jul Act Aug Act Sep Act Oct Act Nov Act Dec Act Jan Act Feb 
Act

Mar 
Act

Actual to Date Head of 
Service / 
Manager

Officer Notes

Aims: Other

Priorities: Homes

Corporate Plan PI Report Homes

Page 1 of 3SPAR.net - Corporate Plan PI Report Homes

24/02/2017http://mddcweb5n/sparnet/default.aspx?id=5250&type=30&nogif=0

P
age 59



Printed by: Nicola Chandler SPAR.net Print Date: 24 February 2017 14:04

Prevention 
Cases

only

% Decent 
Council 
Homes

99.5% (10/12) 100.0% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 99.97% 99.97% 99.97% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% (10/12) Angela 
Haigh, 
Nick 
Sanderson

% Properties 
With a Valid 
Gas Safety 
Certificate

100.0% (10/12) 99.9% 100.00% 99.86% 99.78% 99.91% 99.87% 99.82% 99.96% 99.68% 99.95% 99.95% 99.95% 99.95% (10/12) Angela 
Haigh

(January) The 
expired 
property is a 
long term No 
Access issue. 
The property 
is considered 
abandoned. 
MDDC to 
seek 
possession 
for non-
payment of 
rent. Gas 
meter
associated 
with the 
property is 
located 
internally, 
which means 
that we are 
unable to 
isolate the 
supply. (WD)

Rent Collected 
as a 
Proportion of 
Rent Owed

99.6% (10/12) 99.7% 100.00% 95.52% 96.76% 97.31% 97.77% 99.76% 99.56% 99.66% 99.67% 100.52% 100.05% 100.05% (10/12) Angela 
Haigh

Rent Arrears 
as a 
Proportion of 
Annual Rent 
Debit

1.0% (10/12) 0.7% 1.00% 0.87% 1.00% 1.04% 1.07% 0.10% 1.01% 1.00% 1.00% 0.70% 0.95% 0.95% (10/12) Angela 
Haigh

Dwelling rent 
lost due to 
voids

0.68% (10/12) 0.75% no target -
for 

information 

0.7% 0.7% 0.7% 0.7% 0.6% 0.6% 0.6% 0.1% 0.6% 0.5% 0.5% (10/12) Angela 
Haigh

Performance Indicators

Title Prev Year 
(Period)

Prev 
Year 
End

Annual 
Target

Apr Act May Act Jun Act Jul Act Aug Act Sep Act Oct Act Nov Act Dec Act Jan Act Feb 
Act

Mar 
Act

Actual to Date Head of 
Service / 
Manager

Officer Notes

Aims: Other

Priorities: Homes

Corporate Plan PI Report Homes

Page 2 of 3SPAR.net - Corporate Plan PI Report Homes

24/02/2017http://mddcweb5n/sparnet/default.aspx?id=5250&type=30&nogif=0

P
age 60



Printed by: Nicola Chandler SPAR.net Print Date: 24 February 2017 14:04

only

Average Days 
to Re-Let 
Local 
Authority 
Housing

16.2days (10/12) 16.3days 16.0days 21.9days 16.8days 17.2days 16.8days 16.3days 15.6days 12.4days 16.4days 16.3days 14.9days 14.9days (10/12) Angela 
Haigh

Performance Indicators

Title Prev Year 
(Period)

Prev 
Year 
End

Annual 
Target

Apr Act May Act Jun Act Jul Act Aug Act Sep Act Oct Act Nov Act Dec Act Jan Act Feb 
Act

Mar 
Act

Actual to Date Head of 
Service / 
Manager

Officer Notes

Aims: Other

Priorities: Homes

Corporate Plan PI Report Homes

Page 3 of 3SPAR.net - Corporate Plan PI Report Homes

24/02/2017http://mddcweb5n/sparnet/default.aspx?id=5250&type=30&nogif=0

P
age 61



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Homes PDG Risk Management Report - Appendix 2

Report for 2016-2017
For Homes - Cllr Ray Stanley Portfolio
Filtered by Flag:Include: * CRR 5+ / 15+

For MDDC - Services
Not Including Risk Child Projects records or Mitigating Action records

Key to Performance Status:

Risks: No Data (0+) High (15+) Medium (5+) Low (1+)

Printed by: Nicola Chandler SPAR.net Print Date: 24 February 2017 14:28

Risk: Asbestos Health risks associated with Asbestos products such as lagging, ceiling/wall tiles, fire control. 

Effects (Impact/Severity): 

Causes (Likelihood): 

Service: Housing Services   

Current Status: Medium (5) Current Risk Severity: 5 - Very High  Current Risk Likelihood: 1 - Very Low  

Head of Service: Nick Sanderson 

Review Note: Risks largely restricted to trained/professional EH or PSH officers therefore overall status remains low 

Homes PDG Risk Management Report - Appendix 2

Page 1 of 4SPAR.net - Homes PDG Risk Management Report - Appendix 2

24/02/2017http://mddcweb5n/sparnet/default.aspx?id=5197&type=30&nogif=0

P
age 63



Printed by: Nicola Chandler SPAR.net Print Date: 24 February 2017 14:28

Risk: Electrical testing  Risk of electrocution or fire in Council Properties 

Effects (Impact/Severity): Failure to carry out periodic electrical testing could result in the risk of electrocution or fire. 

Causes (Likelihood): 

Service: Housing Services   

Current Status: Medium (5) Current Risk Severity: 5 - Very High  Current Risk Likelihood: 1 - Very Low  

Head of Service: Nick Sanderson 

Review Note: Every Council property is tested every 5 years as part of the cyclical testing programme. 

Risk: Homelessness Insufficient resources to support an increased homeless population could result in failure to meet statutory duty to 
provide advice and assistance to anyone who is homeless.
It is likely that the new Homelessness Reduction Bill currently being read in Parliament will also have an impact on service demands in 
its current form. 

Effects (Impact/Severity): - Dissatisfied customers and increase in complaints.
- This will involve an increase in officer time in dealing with Homelessness prevention and early intervention.
- Possible increase in temporary accommodation usage. 

Causes (Likelihood): - Social and economic factors like the recession and mortgage repossessions increase the number of homeless.
- Lack of private sector housing. 

Service: Housing Services   

Current Status: High (16) Current Risk Severity: 4 - High  Current Risk Likelihood: 4 - High  

Head of Service: Nick Sanderson 

Review Note: Housing Options team keep up to date with case law updates and comply with legislation changes as and when required. 

Homes PDG Risk Management Report - Appendix 2

Page 2 of 4SPAR.net - Homes PDG Risk Management Report - Appendix 2

24/02/2017http://mddcweb5n/sparnet/default.aspx?id=5197&type=30&nogif=0

P
age 64



Printed by: Nicola Chandler SPAR.net Print Date: 24 February 2017 14:28

Risk: Impact of Welfare Reform and other emerging National Housing Policy Changes to benefits available to tenants could impact 
upon their ability to pay.
Other initiatives could impact upon our ability to deliver our 30 year Business Plan. 

Effects (Impact/Severity): 

Causes (Likelihood): 

Service: Housing Services   

Current Status: High (15) Current Risk Severity: 5 - Very High  Current Risk Likelihood: 3 - Medium  

Head of Service: Nick Sanderson 

Review Note: 

Risk: Inadequate gas appliance maintenance and certification Failure to maintain service of our gas applicances on an annual basis 
could result in death and prosecution 

Effects (Impact/Severity): 

Causes (Likelihood): 

Service: Housing Services   

Current Status: Medium (5) Current Risk Severity: 5 - Very High  Current Risk Likelihood: 1 - Very Low  

Head of Service: Nick Sanderson 

Review Note: Legislation requires Landlords to ensure that annual gas safety checks are carried out in properties with any fixed gas 
appliances regardless of ownership. Within the Councils domestic housing stock this is done in line with the current standards and best 
practice, and is monitored by the Gas and Database Administrator. 

Homes PDG Risk Management Report - Appendix 2

Page 3 of 4SPAR.net - Homes PDG Risk Management Report - Appendix 2

24/02/2017http://mddcweb5n/sparnet/default.aspx?id=5197&type=30&nogif=0

P
age 65



Printed by: Nicola Chandler SPAR.net Print Date: 24 February 2017 14:28

Risk: Widespread fire in block of flats Fire in our multiple occupancy properties, could result in widespread damage, injury or even 
death 

Effects (Impact/Severity): 

Causes (Likelihood): 

Service: Housing Services   

Current Status: Medium (10) Current Risk Severity: 5 - Very High  Current Risk Likelihood: 2 - Low  

Head of Service: Nick Sanderson 

Review Note: The Corporate H & S Officer has now carried out Fire Risk Assessments in the common rooms at Broad Lane and 
Westfield Road.
Housing Caretakers inspect communal areas on a 5 week cycle, which includes checking fire exit doors and signage.
Any issues are reported to the relevant Neighbourhood Officer. 

Homes PDG Risk Management Report - Appendix 2

Page 4 of 4SPAR.net - Homes PDG Risk Management Report - Appendix 2

24/02/2017http://mddcweb5n/sparnet/default.aspx?id=5197&type=30&nogif=0

P
age 66



Risk Matrix Homes Appendix 3

Report 
Filtered by Service: Housing Services

Current settings

Printed by: Nicola Chandler SPAR.net
Print Date: 24 February 2017 

15:02

5 - Very 
High

No Risks No Risks No Risks No Risks No Risks

4 - High No Risks No Risks No Risks 1 Risk No Risks

3 -
Medium

No Risks No Risks 1 Risk 1 Risk 1 Risk

2 - Low No Risks No Risks 6 Risks No Risks 1 Risk

1 - Very 
Low

No Risks No Risks 4 Risks 4 Risks 3 Risks

1 - Very 
Low

2 - Low 3 - Medium 4 - High 5 - Very 
High

Risk Severity

Page 1 of 1SPAR.net - Risk Matrix Homes Appendix 3

24/02/2017http://mddcweb5n/sparnet/default.aspx?id=5213&type=30&nogif=0

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

Briefing on Mandatory Licensing of Houses in 

Multiple Occupation (HMO)   

Homes PDG 14th March 2017 

1.0 Introduction  

The purpose of this briefing is to provide an update on the current position with 

mandatory HMO licensing and to give details on the expected legislative changes 

that are due in spring 2017 and the potential impact this will have on the service.  

The Housing Act 2004 introduced a requirement for certain types of house in multiple 

occupation (HMO) to be licenced by the local housing authority. Large HMOs with 

shared facilities are currently licensed by Mid Devon DC of which there are 9 

properties known to us. 

The main objectives of mandatory HMO licensing are: 

 To regulate the management of these properties.  

 To ensure the safety of the occupiers. 

 To reduce the impact of these properties on local neighbourhoods by 

regulating anti-social behaviour.  

 To ensure this type of accommodation remains a viable housing option for 

single people and/or those people on low incomes.   

These objectives link to Mid Devon District Councils corporate plan 2016-20 which 

has four main priorities concentrating on economy, homes, community and 

environment. HMO licensing relates to the following priorities: 

Economy - Improving and regenerating our town centres  

 Inspecting and regulating houses in multiple occupation that are often found in 
town centres. 
 

Homes – Facilitating the housing growth that Mid Devon needs, including 
affordable homes 

 Working with landlords to improve housing conditions across the private 
rented sector  
 

Community - Promote physical activity, health and wellbeing 

 Working to improve health inequalities by ensuring the private housing sector 
is safe to live in and does not adversely affect health and wellbeing. 

 Enforcing standards within houses in multiple to ensure that vulnerable 
residents residing in these properties are protected from harm. 
 

Environment – Reduce our carbon footprint  

Page 69

Agenda Item 11



2 

 Ensuring that rented accommodation meets minimum energy efficiency 
requirements. 
 

2.0  Current position 

The private sector housing team has been reviewing its processes and documents to 

ensure compliance with regulations and to maximise the resources on the team to 

deliver this mandatory duty. 

There are 9 HMOs licensed with the council that meet the existing licensing criteria. 

To date the team have only had capacity to concentrate on monitoring these 

properties and have not been proactively identifying properties that may require a 

licence. 

The team are in the process of developing a project to identify potential licensable 

HMOs to ensure compliance with this legislation. 

The licence document has also been updated to include a more detailed set of 

licence conditions to help manage the impact of these properties. 

As well as a review of the licence and conditions, the licence fees have also been 

reviewed. HMO licensing has been in place since 2006 therefore the team are better 

placed to identify the true cost of dealing with an application. As a result the fee has 

been re-calculated to enable the council to recover the cost of officer time in dealing 

with the applications. The fees are discussed separately in the Private Sector 

Housing fees and charges paper. 

The team are moving to an online application form to save printing and postage 

costs and to encourage online payment of the fee.  

3.0  Changes to the legislation 

Recently there has been a government consultation on extending the scope of the 

criteria for mandatory licensing. Currently properties that meet the following criteria 

require a licence 

 3 or more storeys; 

 5 or more people; 

 Forming 2 or more households; 

 Sharing of facilities. 

The consultation proposed the removal of the restriction around storeys, allowing all 

HMOs with 5 or more people, forming 2 or more households regardless of the 

number of storeys to be included in mandatory licensing. 

Page 70



3 

The government intends to adopt this change and will introduce regulations in due 

course. It is expected that these changes will commence in spring 2017. 

The team are in the process of establishing what impact these changes will have on 

the number of properties that require a licence. The council does not hold relevant 

information to allow us to predict the locations, numbers and therefore the workload 

this will generate. 

Based on the stock condition survey that was undertaken in 2010 it was predicted 

that 30 properties required a licence, given that the actual number of licensed HMOs 

is 9 being 30% of the survey figure, we are predicting that 30% of the survey figure 

for other types of HMO can be assumed to fall within the new regulations. This 

equates to approx. 50 properties.  

This is a substantial increase in the workload for the team based on the current 

resources. The fees discussed in the Fees and Charges report have been calculated 

to take account of the resources required to undertake this work, however this will 

need to be kept under review to ensure our costs are being recovered. 

It is unlikely that these applications will be, simple, forthcoming without the need for 

intervention from the team or compliant with the licence conditions. This will result in 

a significant workload for the officers and it may be necessary for additional 

resources on a temporary basis to deal with the initial implementation of the 

changes. 

4.0  Next steps 

 Existing licence holders will be sent a copy of the new licence conditions and 

advised that they will need to work towards compliance with these before the 

renewal date of their existing licence.  

 Set up of online application process. 

 Implementation of a project plan for the delivery of the legislative changes as well 

as identifying potential properties that need a licence. 

 When the regulations have been released, promotion and publicity of the scheme 

will be necessary to raise awareness and encourage compliance.  

 Agreement of the proposed fees and charges by Cabinet. 

 Review of the fees after 12 months. 

 

Author:  Tanya Wenham, Lead Officer (Private Sector Housing) 

Manager: Simon Newcombe, Public Health and Professional Services Manager 

March 2017  

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

Briefing to the Homes Policy Development Group on the Homelessness Reduction Bill  

Prepared by Claire Fry, Housing Services Manager, & Mike Parker, Housing Options Manager 

Date: 14 March 2017 

Background  

The Homelessness Reduction Bill 2016-2017 was introduced to Parliament as a Private Member’s Bill 

by Bob Blackman, MP, on 29 June 2016.  It has now completed its progress through the House of 

Commons and the debate on Second Reading in the House of Lords is scheduled for 24 February 

2017. 

The Bill is set to change the way that English Councils respond to homelessness issues.  It was 

informed by the work of an independent panel of experts, established by Crisis (a charity which 

assists single, homeless people).  The aim of this panel was to review the current legislation affecting 

this client group and to identify improvements to the legal framework relating to the prevention of 

single homelessness in England.  

Changes expected  

When a person is homeless or threatened with homelessness, the Council is currently obliged to deal 

with them in accordance with the duties set out in Part VII of the Housing Act 1996, as amended by 

Homelessness Act 2002.  Section 175 of the Act states that a person is threatened with 

homelessness, if it is likely that they will become homeless within 28 days. 

Under the new legislation, the number of days will increase to 56.   

In addition, there will be further guidance relating to the action which an authority should take in 

relation to someone who applies for assistance after they have been served with a valid section 21 

notice (of intention to seek possession from an assured shorthold tenancy).  The Council will have to 

take reasonable steps to try and persuade the landlord to delay an order for possession or to agree 

not to pursue the notice. 

The Bill is also seeking to introduce a new duty on local authorities to prevent homelessness for all 

eligible applicants threatened with homelessness; and a new duty to relieve homelessness for all 

eligible homeless applicants.  These duties will involve helping all eligible people, whether they are 

single or a family.  

Other agencies working in the public sector will also be required to notify the Council if they come 

into contact with someone that they think may be homeless or at risk of becoming homeless. 

Impact  

On 17 January 2017, it was announced that £48 million would be made available to help local 

authorities to meet the additional costs required as a result of the changes to the legislation.  

Currently, there is no indication as to how this will be allocated to specific regions or to individual 

authorities. 

Page 73

Agenda Item 12



2 

 

On 17 January 2017, the Local Government Association released a statement which said that: 

“Councils have concerns that initial costings will inevitably be based on assumptions which will be 

difficult to predict.  For example, it is impossible to know how many people will come forward to 

access the new duties, what the impact of the Bill will be on different groups over time, and 

therefore the funding councils need to deliver duties that reduce homelessness.” 

An increase in the numbers of people presenting to the Council for assistance in connection with 

homelessness or threatened homelessness once the new legislation is adopted is being assumed.  

The cost of temporary accommodation also needs to be taken into account.  The Council already has 

a duty to secure accommodation for those applicants where they have reason to believe that that 

person may be homeless, eligible for assistance and has priority for assistance under the legislation, 

pending a decision on whether or not they are actually homeless.  If the numbers of those 

presenting as homeless at Phoenix House increase, then it can be argued that the budget for 

temporary accommodation will need to be increased.   The Council has a limited supply of 

temporary accommodation available but there is a heavy demand for this.  Therefore bed and 

breakfast accommodation does occasionally have to be used, which is more expensive.  Further, 

there is only a limited supply of this in the District.  This sometimes necessitates clients having to be 

placed in accommodation outside Mid Devon, away from their support networks, local schools, 

employment and so on, with the resulting anxieties associated with that, when they are already 

experiencing difficulties and stress.  

In anticipation of the increased workload, new strategies are being devised with the aim of 

mitigating the risks associated with this. 

The Housing Options team already works in partnership with social landlords, which work in the 

District, and the Housing Options Manager has recently reiterated that members of the team will 

engage in joint visits and other preventative work at the stage when possession proceedings are 

being considered.  This involvement can deliver positive outcomes because individual team 

members can have realistic conversations with tenants about what will actually happen once a 

Possession Order is made.  This can prompt the tenant to work with the landlord to find a way 

forward, in order to avoid the possible disruption and other stress associated with eviction.  

The Council belongs to the Devon and Cornwall Housing Options Partnership which comprises all the 

local housing authorities in Devon and Cornwall.  This group works in partnership to deliver 

strategies to reduce homelessness and to ensure that there is a consistent approach to 

homelessness across the peninsula.  This is useful because it ensures that there is clarity for clients.  

The partnership approach also delivers savings due to the fact that there is a Co-ordinator who is 

able to identify good practice, coordinate joint responses to relevant issues, disseminate relevant 

information and organise training.    

 

 

 

 

Page 74



3 

 

Homelessness Reduction bill 

http://services.parliament.uk/bills/2016-17/homelessnessreduction/documents.html 

 

Progress so far  

http://services.parliament.uk/bills/2016-17/homelessnessreduction.html  

 

Page 75

http://services.parliament.uk/bills/2016-17/homelessnessreduction/documents.html
http://services.parliament.uk/bills/2016-17/homelessnessreduction.html


This page is intentionally left blank



 

Homes Policy Development Group Chairmans Report 2016/2017  

This past year has seen the PDG dealing with a very varied range of subjects in 

our meetings. 

As well as our usual continuing updating of Housing Department policies we 

have spent a lot of time discussing both in committee and working group the 

need for MDDC to get involved in the Syrian Vulnerable Persons Scheme, it 

wasn’t, I don’t think, a difficult task to make the initial decision to try to help 

these people who have suffered so much trauma, on moral grounds this was a 

must. 

But we then had to get our heads around the nitty gritty of how the scheme 

would work in our very rural area and we also needed to satisfy ourselves that 

by being part of the scheme the normal day to day work of the Housing Service 

would be adversely affected by officer time being drawn away from an already 

stretched service. 

I think we have put forward a balanced decision which will hopefully bring 

some comfort to the refugees that find themselves in our beautiful district. 

As with all departments of our Authority the Housing Service find themselves 

having to do more and more with less income, the government 1% rent 

reduction strategy will have a major impact on our financial situation and will 

mean ongoing challenges to provide the excellent service that our tenants 

receive especially from our repairs service headed up by Mark Baglow. 

As a committee we were able to pay a visit to our maintenance depot where a 

very comprehensive tour of the facility was carried out which I am sure was 

extremely useful to the committee members who attended and I think it 

brought to our attention the problems that our repair service face day by day. 

 I wish to extend a heartfelt thanks to all our repair staff who on a daily basis 

are the face of Mid Devon in the eyes of our tenants, it is always pleasing to 

see the praise that is often recorded for the good work that is done for our 

tenants.  

Page 77

Agenda Item 13



And now I move to the Housing officers who have for yet another year proved 

to be invaluable to us, their dedication has made sure that as an Authority we 

are ranked amongst the best in the land. Their efforts in making sure that our 

rent arrears are at a constantly low level is a credit to this Council, they 

diligently pursue outstanding rents and seem to have found a very successful 

formula for rent collection, well done. 

MDDC are in the process of building more affordable homes to try to help 

some many people who find themselves in need of local authority housing, as 

we are all aware the scheme at Palmerston Park in Tiverton has suffered some 

setbacks but I am confident that in the not too distant future we will see these 

houses being occupied. 

We must strive to bring forward more affordable homes in our district which I 

know has a high priority with both the Cabinet Member for Housing and also 

our Head of Housing, 

May I take this opportunity to thank them both for their dedication and 

forward thinking and also for the ongoing advice and sound judgement they 

bring to our meetings. 

 Whilst on the subject of thanks it would be remiss of me not to extend a very 

heartfelt thanks to all the members of the PDG who have turned up to our 

meetings and have taken part in the discussions. 

Once again this past year has seen a lot of work carried out by our Tenants 

Together Group who are very dedicated to their tasks, thank you very much. 

Their work has not gone unnoticed and they were shortlisted for an award 

from TPAS, sadly they didn’t get “the Oscar” this time (or was there a muddle 

up with the envelopes?) but I am sure their dedication and hard work will be 

rewarded in years to come, thank you all. 

In the next couple of years I think our housing service will face some very 

tough challenges brought about by ever changing regulations, customer 

expectations and last but far from least financial restrictions but I am sure that 

as in the past they will rally around and produce a service we as members can 

be proud of. 

Finally can I extend special thanks to our committee clerk Sarah Lees for her 

Page 78



dedication, help and advice that is always delivered with a smile and in a 

thoughtful way, thank you Sarah. 

  

Peter Heal  

Chairman Homes Policy Development Group. 

  

 

 

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	5 Vulnerability Policy
	Draft Vulnerability Policy V1.3

	6 Telecare Policy
	Draft telecare policy v 1.2

	7 Private Sector Housing Fees and Charges
	8 Financial Monitoring - for the 9 months to December 2016
	Combined Dec Monitoring Report Homes App A-F
	App G Capital Programme

	9 Performance and Risk Q3
	Homes PDG Performance report Appendix 1
	Homes PDG Risk Report Appendix 2
	Homes PDG Risk Matrix Appendix 3

	11 Houses in multiple occupation
	12 Homelessness Reduction Bill - briefing paper
	13 Chairman Annual Report 2016/17

